
I. Call to Order & Roll Call
II. Chairman's Remarks

III. Message from the Executive Director (with attachments; Tab A)
IV. Senior Staff Reports
V. Committee Reports

VI. Project Reports
VII. Other Business

VIII. Adjournment

I. Call to Order 
II. Chairman's Remarks

III. Roll Call
IV. Acceptance of Financial Statements and Minutes
V. Project Approvals
VI. Other Business

VII. Adjournment

10:30 a.m.
One Prudential Plaza Conference Center

130 East Randolph Ave., 7th Floor
Chicago, Illinois

BOARD MEETING

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
BOARD MEETING

Tuesday, March 8, 2011
Chicago, Illinois

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
8:30 a.m.

Two Prudential Plaza - IFA Chicago Office
180 North Stetson Ave., Suite 2555

Chicago, Illinois

AGENDA



Board Meeting Agenda*

Tab Project Name Location Amount New Jobs Const. Jobs FM

A) Craig A. & Cara Mz Huber Lanark (Carroll County) $295,450 0 0 JS/LK
B) James V. Mickley Colona (Henry County) $248,000 0 0 JS/LK
C) Kane Richard Vandersnick Annawan (Henry County) $326,000 0 0 JS/LK

$869,450 0 0

Tab Project Name Location Amount New Jobs Const. Jobs FM

2 Methodist Medical Center of Illinois Peoria (Peoria County) $133,000,000 0 0 PL/NO

3 (Withdrawn)
4 Sarah Bush Lincoln Health System Mattoon (Coles County) $45,000,000 17 60 PL/NO
5 The Carle Foundation Urbana (Champaign County) $400,000,000 0 275 PL/NO

$578,000,000 17 335
$578,869,450 17 335

Tab FM

6 JS
7 JS
8 BC
9 CM

10 BC/RF

11 JS
12 XG

*Agenda revised as of Friday, March 4, 2011 at 5:00 PM

Request for Financial Covenant Compliance Waiver IFA Agri-Business Guarantee #A-AI-TX-GT-6120

Resolution to Proceed with IT Investments

Ratification of Settlement Amount for IFA Loan Participation #B-LL-TX-6224  
Ratification of Authorization of Counsel to Pursue Remedies under Default Provisions for IFA Agri-Debt Guarantee #2004-AI-0078

Authorize Executive Director to negotiate settlement regarding sale of Harmonic Vision, Inc. 
Authorize Executive Director to negotiate settlement for IFA Agri-Debt Guarantee #2007-SL-0101

Request for Release of manufacturing equipment currently held as collateral for IFA Loan Participation #B-LL-TX-6134

RESOLUTIONS

Project Name

Amendatory Resolutions

March 8, 2011

501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
Preliminary

501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
Final

TOTAL HEALTHCARE PROJECTS
GRAND TOTAL

AGRICULTURE

Beginning Farmer Bonds                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
Final (One-Time Consideration)

1

TOTAL AGRICULTURE PROJECTS

HEALTHCARE



 
 

Illinois Finance Authority 
Board of Directors 

Committee as a Whole Meeting 
March 8th, 2011 

 
 
 

Additional Information 
 
 
 

 
1.  Message from Executive Director 

       
2. 

• Information on Agenda Item #7 
• Information on Agenda Items #10 
• Information on Agenda Item #11 

           
      3.  Procurement Communications Guidance 
 

4. Ethics Training Materials 
 

5. IT Project Materials (Agenda Item #9) 
 

6. IFA Comments to the SEC 
      

7. IFA Media Relations “Clip-Tracker”, prepared by Marj Halperin       
            Consulting, with media clips enclosed 

       
       
 
  
     
 
 

















































































































































































































Illinois Finance Authority
General Fund - Actual to Budget

Statement of Activities
for Period Ending 
February 28,  2011

Page 1

Actual Budget Current Month Current Actual Budget Year to Date YTD Total % of
February February Variance % YTD YTD Variance % Budget Budget

2011 2011 Actual vs. Budget Variance FY 2011 FY 2011 Actual vs. Budget Variance FY 2011 Expended

REVENUE

   INTEREST ON LOANS 63,995               103,579                  (39,584)                  -38.22% 680,780               784,831                  (104,051)                -13.26% 1,146,121         59.40%
   INVESTMENT INTEREST & GAIN(LOSS) 3,059                 1,709                      1,350                      78.99% 37,905                 13,672                    24,233                    177.25% 20,500               184.90%
   ADMINISTRATIONS & APPLICATION FEES 129,620             316,532                  (186,912)                -59.05% 3,932,011            2,461,957               1,470,054              59.71% 3,569,338         110.16%
   ANNUAL ISSUANCE & LOAN FEES 39,209               47,666                    (8,457)                    -17.74% 394,921               383,823                  11,098                    2.89% 582,892             67.75%
   OTHER INCOME 7,317                 6,878                      439                         6.38% 130,054               55,024                    75,030                    136.36% 82,537               157.57%

 TOTAL REVENUE 243,200             476,364                  (233,164)                -48.95% 5,175,671            3,699,307               1,476,364              39.91% 5,401,388         95.82%

 EXPENSES

   EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES
    COMPENSATION & TAXES 141,486             209,069                  (67,583)                  -32.33% 1,187,109            1,531,571               (344,462)                -22.49% 2,354,798         50.41%
    BENEFITS 22,444               24,859                    (2,415)                    -9.71% 156,155               186,886                  (30,731)                  -16.44% 286,314             54.54%
    TEMPORARY HELP -                         417                          (417)                       -100.00% 1,382                   3,336                      (1,954)                    -58.57% 5,000                 27.64%
    EDUCATION & DEVELOPMENT 100                    1,667                      (1,567)                    -94.00% 3,213                   13,333                    (10,120)                  -75.90% 20,000               16.07%
    TRAVEL & AUTO 4,414                 6,250                      (1,836)                    -29.38% 27,799                 50,000                    (22,201)                  -44.40% 75,000               37.07%

 TOTAL EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES 168,444             242,262                  (73,818)                  -30.47% 1,375,658            1,785,126               (409,468)                -22.94% 2,741,112         50.19%

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
    CONSULTING, LEGAL & ADMIN 51,372               20,833                    30,539                    146.59% 257,297               166,667                  90,630                    54.38% 250,000             102.92%
    LOAN EXPENSE & BANK FEE 8,572                 10,875                    (2,303)                    -21.18% 79,437                 87,000                    (7,563)                    -8.69% 130,500             60.87%
    ACCOUNTING & AUDITING 26,418               26,326                    92                           0.35% 218,632               210,608                  8,024                      3.81% 315,904             69.21%
    MARKETING GENERAL 421                    2,083                      (1,662)                    -79.79% 13,159                 16,664                    (3,505)                    -21.03% 25,000               52.64%
    FINANCIAL ADVISORY 23,750               31,250                    (7,500)                    -24.00% 112,708               250,000                  (137,292)                -54.92% 375,000             30.06%
   CONFERENCE/TRAINING 1,410                 1,667                      (257)                       -15.42% 5,009                   13,336                    (8,327)                    -62.44% 20,000               25.05%
    MISC. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 21,095               15,375                    5,720                      37.20% 93,148                 123,000                  (29,852)                  -24.27% 184,500             50.49%
    DATA PROCESSING 4,085                 4,583                      (498)                       -10.87% 27,382                 36,664                    (9,282)                    -25.32% 55,000               49.79%

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 137,123             112,992                  24,131                    21.36% 806,772               903,939                  (97,167)                  -10.75% 1,355,904         59.50%



Illinois Finance Authority
General Fund - Actual to Budget

Statement of Activities
for Period Ending 
February 28,  2011

Page 2

Actual Budget Current Month Current Actual Budget Year to Date YTD Total % of
February February Variance % YTD YTD Variance % Budget Budget

2011 2011 Actual vs. Budget Variance FY 2011 FY 2011 Actual vs. Budget Variance FY 2011 Expended

OCCUPANCY COSTS
    OFFICE RENT 21,992               22,840                    (848)                       -3.71% 166,878               182,720                  (15,842)                  -8.67% 274,076             60.89%
    EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PURCHASES 3,133                 1,700                      1,433                      84.29% 15,133                 13,600                    1,533                      11.27% 20,400               74.18%
    TELECOMMUNICATIONS 882                    5,050                      (4,168)                    -82.53% 21,613                 40,400                    (18,787)                  -46.50% 60,600               35.67%
    UTILITIES 1,038                 917                          121                         13.20% 7,735                   7,336                      399                         5.44% 11,000               70.32%
    DEPRECIATION 2,369                 4,109                      (1,740)                    -42.35% 19,779                 32,872                    (13,093)                  -39.83% 49,305               40.12%
     INSURANCE 1,929                 1,900                      29                           1.53% 15,433                 15,200                    233                         1.53% 22,800               67.69%

TOTAL OCCUPANCY COSTS 31,343               36,516                    (5,173)                    -14.17% 246,571               292,128                  (45,557)                  -15.59% 438,181             56.27%

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION
    OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,179                 4,458                      (2,279)                    -51.12% 24,396                 35,664                    (11,268)                  -31.59% 53,500               45.60%
    BOARD MEETING - EXPENSES 3,609                 3,000                      609                         20.30% 25,140                 24,000                    1,140                      4.75% 36,000               69.83%
    PRINTING 490                    542                          (52)                         -9.54% 6,653                   4,333                      2,320                      53.53% 6,500                 102.35%
    POSTAGE & FREIGHT 996                    1,250                      (254)                       -20.32% 10,966                 10,000                    966                         9.66% 15,000               73.11%
    MEMBERSHIP, DUES & CONTRIBUTIONS 6,181                 2,708                      3,473                      128.25% 27,463                 21,664                    5,799                      26.77% 32,500               84.50%
    PUBLICATIONS 83                      250                          (167)                       -66.80% 1,486                   2,000                      (514)                       -25.70% 3,000                 49.53%
    OFFICERS & DIRECTORS INSURANCE 15,619               15,833                    (214)                       -1.35% 131,462               126,664                  4,798                      3.79% 190,000             69.19%
    MISCELLANEOUS -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00% -                         0.00%

 TOTAL GENL & ADMIN EXPENSES 29,157               28,041                    1,116                      3.98% 227,566               224,325                  3,241                      1.44% 336,500             67.63%

    LOAN LOSS PROVISION/BAD DEBT 25,000               25,000                    -                              0.00% 525,568               200,000                  325,568                  162.78% 300,000             175.19%

 OTHER
    INTEREST EXPENSE -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00% -                         0.00%

 TOTAL OTHER -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00% -                         0.00%

 TOTAL EXPENSES 391,067             444,811                  (53,744)                  -12.08% 3,182,135            3,405,518               (223,383)                -6.56% 5,171,697         61.53%

 NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 
 UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS) & TRANSFERS (147,867)           31,553                    (179,420)                -568.63% 1,993,536            293,789                  1,699,747              578.56% 229,691             867.92%

 NET UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS)
 ON INVESTMENT -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00% -                         0.00%

 TRANSFER 12,192               -                              12,192                    0.00% 1,126,003            -                              1,126,003              0.00% -                         0.00%

   REVENUE GRANT -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00% -                         0.00%

   APPROPRIATIONS FROM STATE -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                           -                              -                              0.00% -                         -                   

 NET INCOME/(LOSS) (135,675)           31,553                    (167,228)                -529.99% 3,119,538            293,789                  2,825,749              961.83% 229,691             1358.15%



Illinois Finance Authority
General Fund - Actual to Actual

Statement of Activities
for Period Ending 
February 28, 2011

Page 1

Actual Actual Current Month Current Actual Actual Year to Date YTD
February February Variance % YTD YTD Variance %

2011 2010 Actual vs. Actual Variance FY 2011 FY 2011 Actual vs. Actual Variance

REVENUE

   INTEREST ON LOANS 63,995               (255)                  64,250                    -25196.08% 680,780               689,455               (8,675)                    -1.26%
   INVESTMENT INTEREST & GAIN(LOSS) 3,059                 2,497                 562                         22.51% 37,905                 28,989                 8,916                      30.76%
   ADMINISTRATIONS & APPLICATION FEES 129,620             174,821             (45,201)                  -25.86% 3,932,011            3,595,251            336,760                  9.37%
   ANNUAL ISSUANCE & LOAN FEES 39,209               48,259               (9,050)                    -18.75% 394,921               593,720               (198,799)                -33.48%
   OTHER INCOME 7,317                 7,701                 (384)                       -4.99% 130,054               206,353               (76,299)                  -36.97%

 TOTAL REVENUE 243,200             233,023             10,177                    4.37% 5,175,671            5,113,768            61,903                    1.21%

 EXPENSES

   EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES
    COMPENSATION & TAXES 141,486             232,832             (91,346)                  -39.23% 1,187,109            1,885,998            (698,889)                -37.06%
    BENEFITS 22,444               26,572               (4,128)                    -15.54% 156,155               193,513               (37,358)                  -19.31%
    TEMPORARY HELP -                         2,296                 (2,296)                    -100.00% 1,382                   22,089                 (20,707)                  -93.74%
    EDUCATION & DEVELOPMENT 100                    -                         100                         0.00% 3,213                   11,035                 (7,822)                    -70.88%
    TRAVEL & AUTO 4,414                 2,203                 2,211                      100.36% 27,799                 34,106                 (6,307)                    -18.49%

 TOTAL EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES 168,444             263,903             (95,459)                  -36.17% 1,375,658            2,146,741            (771,083)                -35.92%

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
    CONSULTING, LEGAL & ADMIN 51,372               16,304               35,068                    215.09% 257,297               127,629               129,668                  101.60%
    LOAN EXPENSE & BANK FEE 8,572                 9,910                 (1,338)                    -13.50% 79,437                 80,387                 (950)                       -1.18%
    ACCOUNTING & AUDITING 26,418               23,310               3,108                      13.33% 218,632               187,892               30,740                    16.36%
    MARKETING GENERAL 421                    2,070                 (1,649)                    -79.66% 13,159                 5,212                   7,947                      152.48%
    FINANCIAL ADVISORY 23,750               18,333               5,417                      29.55% 112,708               146,664               (33,956)                  -23.15%
   CONFERENCE/TRAINING 1,410                 1,185                 225                         0.00% 5,009                   5,353                   (344)                       -6.43%
    MISC. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 21,095               17,142               3,953                      0.00% 93,148                 83,923                 9,225                      0.00%
    DATA PROCESSING 4,085                 3,273                 812                         24.81% 27,382                 34,239                 (6,857)                    -20.03%

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 137,123             91,527               45,596                    49.82% 806,772               671,299               135,473                  20.18%



Illinois Finance Authority
General Fund - Actual to Actual

Statement of Activities
for Period Ending 
February 28, 2011

Page 2

Actual Actual Current Month Current Actual Actual Year to Date YTD
February February Variance % YTD YTD Variance %

2011 2010 Actual vs. Actual Variance FY 2011 FY 2011 Actual vs. Actual Variance

OCCUPANCY COSTS
    OFFICE RENT 21,992               22,420               (428)                       -1.91% 166,878               171,781               (4,903)                    -2.85%
    EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PURCHASES 3,133                 2,200                 933                         42.41% 15,133                 22,526                 (7,393)                    -32.82%
    TELECOMMUNICATIONS 882                    2,963                 (2,081)                    -70.23% 21,613                 34,400                 (12,787)                  -37.17%
    UTILITIES 1,038                 1,104                 (66)                         -5.98% 7,735                   7,877                   (142)                       -1.80%
    DEPRECIATION 2,369                 3,942                 (1,573)                    -39.90% 19,779                 38,275                 (18,496)                  -48.32%
     INSURANCE 1,929                 1,932                 (3)                            -0.16% 15,433                 15,500                 (67)                         -0.43%

TOTAL OCCUPANCY COSTS 31,343               34,561               (3,218)                    -9.31% 246,571               290,359               (43,788)                  -15.08%

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION
    OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,179                 2,438                 (259)                       -10.62% 24,396                 27,539                 (3,143)                    -11.41%
    BOARD MEETING - EXPENSES 3,609                 2,173                 1,436                      66.08% 25,140                 20,978                 4,162                      19.84%
    PRINTING 490                    629                    (139)                       -22.10% 6,653                   4,603                   2,050                      44.54%
    POSTAGE & FREIGHT 996                    721                    275                         38.14% 10,966                 10,217                 749                         7.33%
    MEMBERSHIP, DUES & CONTRIBUTIONS 6,181                 5,467                 714                         13.06% 27,463                 27,161                 302                         1.11%
    PUBLICATIONS 83                      168                    (85)                         -50.60% 1,486                   1,265                   221                         17.47%
    OFFICERS & DIRECTORS INSURANCE 15,619               15,619               -                              0.00% 131,462               125,012               6,450                      5.16%
    MISCELLANEOUS -                         -                         -                              - -                           -                           -                              -

 TOTAL GENL & ADMIN EXPENSES 29,157               27,215               1,942                      7.14% 227,566               216,775               10,791                    4.98%

    LOAN LOSS PROVISION/BAD DEBT 25,000               25,000               -                              0.00% 525,568               582,202               (56,634)                  -9.73%

 OTHER
    INTEREST EXPENSE -                         -                         -                              0.00% -                           -                           -                              0.00%

 TOTAL OTHER -                         -                         -                              0.00% -                           -                           -                              0.00%

 TOTAL EXPENSES 391,067             442,206             (51,139)                  -11.56% 3,182,135            3,907,376            (725,241)                -18.56%

 NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 
 UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS) & TRANSFERS (147,867)           (209,183)           61,316                    -29.31% 1,993,536            1,206,392            787,144                  65.25%

 NET UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS)
 ON INVESTMENT -                         -                         -                              0.00% -                           -                           -                              0.00%

 TRANSFER 12,192               -                         12,192                    0.00% 1,126,003            80,608                 1,045,395              1296.89%

   REVENUE GRANT -                         -                         -                              0.00% -                           -                           -                              0.00%

   APPROPRIATIONS FROM STATE -                         -                         -                              0.00% -                           -                           -                              0.00%

 NET INCOME/(LOSS) (135,675)           (209,183)           73,508                    -35.14% 3,119,538            1,287,000            1,832,538              142.39%



Illinois Finance Authority
General Fund

Unaudited
Balance Sheet

for the Eight Months Ending February 28, 2011

Actual
February

2011

ASSETS
  CASH & INVESTMENTS, UNRESTRICTED 27,771,499$           
  RECEIVABLES, NET 59,684                   
  LOAN RECEIVABLE, NET 15,928,396             
  OTHER RECEIVABLES 140,095                 
  PREPAID EXPENSES 111,424                 

  TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 44,011,098             

FIXED ASSETS, NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 54,859                   

DEFERRED ISSUANCE COSTS 317,111                 

OTHER ASSETS
  CASH, INVESTMENTS & RESERVES 1,581,617              
  OTHER 2,157                     

  TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 1,583,774              

TOTAL ASSETS 45,966,842$           

LIABILITIES
  CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,542,354$             
  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 462,542                 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,004,896              

EQUITY
  CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 4,111,479              
  RETAINED EARNINGS 24,759,631             
  NET INCOME / (LOSS) 3,119,538              
  RESERVED/RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 1,732,164              
  UNRESERVED FUND BALANCE 10,239,134             

TOTAL EQUITY 43,961,946             

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 45,966,842$           



Illinois Finance Authority
Consolidated - Actual to Budget

Statement of Activities
for Period Ending 
February 28, 2011

Page 1

Actual Budget Current Month Current Actual Budget Year to Date YTD Total % of
February February Variance % YTD YTD Variance % Budget Budget

2011 2011 Actual vs. Budget Variance FY 2011 FY 2011 Actual vs. Budget Variance FY 2010 Expended

REVENUE

   INTEREST ON LOANS 241,860             279,917                  (38,057)                  -13.60% 2,112,103         2,216,742               (104,639)                -4.72% 3,291,666         64.17%
   INVESTMENT INTEREST & GAIN(LOSS) 61,078               60,707                    371                         0.61% 516,498             485,656                  30,842                    6.35% 728,492             70.90%
   ADMINISTRATIONS & APPLICATION FEES 129,620             316,532                  (186,912)                -59.05% 3,932,011         2,461,957               1,470,054              59.71% 3,569,338         110.16%
   ANNUAL ISSUANCE & LOAN FEES 39,209               47,666                    (8,457)                    -17.74% 394,921             383,823                  11,098                    2.89% 642,892             61.43%
   OTHER INCOME 12,317               11,878                    439                         3.70% 1,138,762         95,024                    1,043,738              1098.39% 82,537               1379.70%

-                                                        -                               -                                - -                                                        -                                -                                -                                -                                - 
 TOTAL REVENUE 484,084             716,700                  (232,616)                -32.46% 8,094,295         5,643,202               2,451,093              43.43% 8,314,925         97.35%

 EXPENSES

   EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES
    COMPENSATION & TAXES 141,486             209,069                  (67,583)                  -32.33% 1,187,109         1,531,571               (344,462)                -22.49% 2,354,798         50.41%
    BENEFITS 22,444               24,859                    (2,415)                    -9.71% 156,155             186,886                  (30,731)                  -16.44% 286,314             54.54%
    TEMPORARY HELP -                         417                          (417)                       -100.00% 1,382                 3,336                      (1,954)                    -58.57% 5,000                 27.64%
    EDUCATION & DEVELOPMENT 100                    1,667                      (1,567)                    -94.00% 3,213                 13,333                    (10,120)                  -75.90% 20,000               16.07%
    TRAVEL & AUTO 4,414                 6,250                      (1,836)                    -29.38% 27,799               50,000                    (22,201)                  -44.40% 75,000               37.07%

 TOTAL EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES 168,444             242,262                  (73,818)                  -30.47% 1,375,658         1,785,126               (409,468)                -22.94% 2,741,112         50.19%

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
    CONSULTING, LEGAL & ADMIN 53,455               23,749                    29,706                    125.08% 273,961             189,995                  83,966                    44.19% 285,000             96.13%
    LOAN EXPENSE & BANK FEE 261,895             264,206                  (2,311)                    -0.87% 1,748,624         1,714,242               34,382                    2.01% 2,771,070         63.10%
    ACCOUNTING & AUDITING 28,264               28,422                    (158)                       -0.56% 233,398             227,376                  6,022                      2.65% 341,054             68.43%
    MARKETING GENERAL 421                    2,083                      (1,662)                    -79.79% 13,159               16,664                    (3,505)                    -21.03% 25,000               52.64%
    FINANCIAL ADVISORY 23,750               31,250                    (7,500)                    -24.00% 112,708             250,000                  (137,292)                -54.92% 375,000             30.06%
   CONFERENCE/TRAINING 1,410                 1,667                      (257)                       -15.42% 5,009                 13,336                    (8,327)                    -62.44% 20,000               25.05%
    MISC. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 24,428               18,708                    5,720                      30.58% 119,813             149,664                  (29,851)                  -19.95% 224,500             53.37%
    DATA PROCESSING 4,085                 4,583                      (498)                       -10.87% 27,382               36,664                    (9,282)                    -25.32% 55,000               49.79%

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 397,708             374,668                  23,040                    6.15% 2,534,054         2,597,941               (63,887)                  -2.46% 4,096,624         61.86%



Illinois Finance Authority
Consolidated - Actual to Budget

Statement of Activities
for Period Ending 
February 28, 2011

Page 2

Actual Budget Current Month Current Actual Budget Year to Date YTD Total % of
February February Variance % YTD YTD Variance % Budget Budget

2011 2011 Actual vs. Budget Variance FY 2011 FY 2011 Actual vs. Budget Variance FY 2010 Expended

OCCUPANCY COSTS
    OFFICE RENT 21,992               22,840                    (848)                       -3.71% 166,878             182,720                  (15,842)                  -8.67% 274,076             60.89%
    EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PURCHASES 3,133                 1,700                      1,433                      84.29% 15,133               13,600                    1,533                      11.27% 20,400               74.18%
    TELECOMMUNICATIONS 882                    5,050                      (4,168)                    -82.53% 21,613               40,400                    (18,787)                  -46.50% 60,600               35.67%
    UTILITIES 1,038                 917                          121                         13.20% 7,735                 7,336                      399                         5.44% 11,000               70.32%
    DEPRECIATION 2,369                 4,109                      (1,740)                    -42.35% 19,779               32,872                    (13,093)                  -39.83% 49,305               40.12%
     INSURANCE 1,929                 1,900                      29                           1.53% 15,434               15,200                    234                         1.54% 22,800               67.69%

TOTAL OCCUPANCY COSTS 31,343               36,516                    (5,173)                    -14.17% 246,572             292,128                  (45,556)                  -15.59% 438,181             56.27%

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION
    OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,179                 4,458                      (2,279)                    -51.12% 24,396               35,664                    (11,268)                  -31.59% 53,500               45.60%
    BOARD MEETING - EXPENSES 3,609                 3,000                      609                         20.30% 25,140               24,000                    1,140                      4.75% 36,000               69.83%
    PRINTING 490                    542                          (52)                         -9.54% 6,653                 4,333                      2,320                      53.54% 6,500                 102.35%
    POSTAGE & FREIGHT 996                    1,250                      (254)                       -20.32% 10,966               10,000                    966                         9.66% 15,000               73.11%
    MEMBERSHIP, DUES & CONTRIBUTIONS 6,181                 2,708                      3,473                      128.25% 27,464               21,664                    5,800                      26.77% 32,500               84.50%
    PUBLICATIONS 83                      250                          (167)                       -66.80% 1,486                 2,000                      (514)                       -25.70% 3,000                 49.53%
    OFFICERS & DIRECTORS INSURANCE 15,619               15,833                    (214)                       -1.35% 131,462             126,664                  4,798                      3.79% 190,000             69.19%
    MISCELLANEOUS -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                         0.00%

 TOTAL GENL & ADMIN EXPENSES 29,157               28,041                    1,116                      3.98% 227,567             224,325                  3,242                      1.45% 336,500             67.63%

    LOAN LOSS PROVISION/BAD DEBT 25,000               116,666                  (91,666)                  -78.57% 520,983             933,328                  (412,345)                -44.18% 1,400,000         37.21%

 OTHER
    INTEREST EXPENSE 503                    503                          -                              0.00% 4,306                 4,306                      -                              0.00% 6,317                 68.17%

 TOTAL OTHER 503                    503                          -                              0.00% 4,306                 4,306                      -                              0.00% 6,317                 68.17%

 TOTAL EXPENSES 652,155             798,656                  (146,501)                -18.34% 4,909,140         5,837,154               (928,014)                -15.90% 9,018,734         54.43%

 NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 
 UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS) & TRANSFERS (168,071)           (81,956)                   (86,115)                  105.08% 3,185,155         (193,952)                 3,379,107              -1742.24% (703,809)           -452.56%

 NET UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS)
 ON INVESTMENT -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                         0.00%

 TRANSFERS TO STATE OF ILLINOIS -                         -                              -                              0.00% (3,302,000)        -                              (3,302,000)             0.00% -                         0.00%

   REVENUE GRANT -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                         0.00%

   APPROPRIATIONS FROM STATE -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                         -                              -                              0.00% -                         -                   

 NET INCOME/(LOSS) (168,071)           (81,956)                   (86,115)                  105.08% (116,844)           (193,952)                 77,108                    -39.76% (703,809)           16.60%



Illinois Finance Authority
Consolidated 

Statement of Activities
Comparison

for February 2011and February 2010

Page 1

Actual Actual Current Month Current Actual Actual Year to Date YTD
February February Variance % YTD YTD Variance %

2011 2010 Actual vs. Actual Variance FY 2011 FY 2010 Actual vs. Actual Variance

REVENUE

   INTEREST ON LOANS 241,860            249,744                 (7,884)                    -3.16% 2,112,103         3,169,299      (1,057,196)             -33.36%
   INVESTMENT INTEREST & GAIN(LOSS) 61,078              150,282                 (89,204)                  -59.36% 516,498            699,278        (182,780)                -26.14%
   ADMINISTRATIONS & APPLICATION FEES 129,620            174,821                 (45,201)                  -25.86% 3,932,011         3,595,251      336,760                 9.37%
   ANNUAL ISSUANCE & LOAN FEES 39,209              48,259                   (9,050)                    -18.75% 394,921            593,720        (198,799)                -33.48%
   OTHER INCOME 12,317              30,874                   (18,557)                  -60.11% 1,138,762         430,331        708,431                 164.62%

-                                                    - 0.00% -                                                    -                   - 
 TOTAL REVENUE 484,084            653,980                 (169,896)                -25.98% 8,094,295         8,487,879      (393,584)                -4.64%

 EXPENSES

   EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES
    COMPENSATION & TAXES 141,486            232,832                 (91,346)                  -39.23% 1,187,109         1,885,998      (698,889)                -37.06%
    BENEFITS 22,444              26,572                   (4,128)                    -15.54% 156,155            193,513        (37,358)                  -19.31%
    TEMPORARY HELP -                       2,296                     (2,296)                    -100.00% 1,382                22,089          (20,707)                  -93.74%
    EDUCATION & DEVELOPMENT 100                   -                            100                        0.00% 3,213                11,035          (7,822)                    0.00%
    TRAVEL & AUTO 4,414                2,203                     2,211                     100.36% 27,799              34,106          (6,307)                    -18.49%

 TOTAL EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES 168,444            263,903                 (95,459)                  -36.17% 1,375,658         2,146,741      (771,083)                -35.92%

 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
    CONSULTING, LEGAL & ADMIN 53,455              17,137                   36,318                   211.93% 273,961            134,293        139,668                 104.00%
    LOAN EXPENSE & BANK FEE 261,895            1,458,399              (1,196,504)             -82.04% 1,748,624         2,989,068      (1,240,444)             -41.50%
    ACCOUNTING & AUDITING 28,264              25,356                   2,908                     11.47% 233,398            217,846        15,552                   7.14%
    MARKETING GENERAL 421                   2,070                     (1,649)                    0.00% 13,159              5,212            7,947                     0.00%
    FINANCIAL ADVISORY 23,750              18,333                   5,417                     29.55% 112,708            146,664        (33,956)                  -23.15%
   CONFERENCE/TRAINING 1,410                1,185                     225                        0.00% 5,009                5,353            (344)                       0.00%
    MISC. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 24,428              20,475                   3,953                     0.00% 119,813            110,587        9,226                     8.34%
    DATA PROCESSING 4,085                3,273                     812                        24.81% 27,382              34,239          (6,857)                    -20.03%

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 397,708            1,546,228              (1,148,520)             -74.28% 2,534,054         3,643,262      (1,109,208)             -30.45%



Illinois Finance Authority
Consolidated 

Statement of Activities
Comparison

for February 2011and February 2010

Page 2

Actual Actual Current Month Current Actual Actual Year to Date YTD
February February Variance % YTD YTD Variance %

2011 2010 Actual vs. Actual Variance FY 2011 FY 2010 Actual vs. Actual Variance

OCCUPANCY COSTS
    OFFICE RENT 21,992              22,420                   (428)                       -1.91% 166,878            171,781        (4,903)                    -2.85%
    EQUIPMENT RENTAL AND PURCHASES 3,133                2,200                     933                        42.41% 15,133              22,526          (7,393)                    -32.82%
    TELECOMMUNICATIONS 882                   2,963                     (2,081)                    -70.23% 21,613              34,400          (12,787)                  -37.17%
    UTILITIES 1,038                1,104                     (66)                         -5.98% 7,735                7,877            (142)                       -1.80%
    DEPRECIATION 2,369                3,942                     (1,573)                    -39.90% 19,779              38,275          (18,496)                  -48.32%
     INSURANCE 1,929                1,932                     (3)                           -0.16% 15,434              15,500          (66)                         -0.43%

TOTAL OCCUPANCY COSTS 31,343              34,561                   (3,218)                    -9.31% 246,572            290,359        (43,787)                  -15.08%

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION
    OFFICE SUPPLIES 2,179                2,438                     (259)                       -10.62% 24,396              27,539          (3,143)                    -11.41%
    BOARD MEETING - EXPENSES 3,609                2,173                     1,436                     66.08% 25,140              20,977          4,163                     19.85%
    PRINTING 490                   629                        (139)                       -22.10% 6,653                4,603            2,050                     44.54%
    POSTAGE & FREIGHT 996                   721                        275                        38.14% 10,966              10,217          749                        7.33%
    MEMBERSHIP, DUES & CONTRIBUTIONS 6,181                5,467                     714                        13.06% 27,464              27,161          303                        1.12%
    PUBLICATIONS 83                    168                        (85)                         -50.60% 1,486                1,265            221                        17.47%
    OFFICERS & DIRECTORS INSURANCE 15,619              15,619                   -                            0.00% 131,462            125,013        6,449                     5.16%
    MISCELLANEOUS -                       -                            -                            0.00% -                       -                    -                            0.00%

 TOTAL GENL & ADMIN EXPENSES 29,157              27,215                   1,942                     7.14% 227,567            216,775        10,792                   4.98%

    LOAN LOSS PROVISION/BAD DEBT 25,000              25,000                   -                            0.00% 520,983            577,865        (56,882)                  -9.84%

 OTHER
    INTEREST EXPENSE 503                   550                        (47)                         -8.55% 4,306                4,684            (378)                       -8.07%

 TOTAL OTHER 503                   550                        (47)                         -8.55% 4,306                4,684            (378)                       -8.07%

 TOTAL EXPENSES 652,155            1,897,457              (1,245,302)             -65.63% 4,909,140         6,879,688      (1,970,548)             -28.64%

 NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE 
 UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS) & TRANSFERS (168,071)          (1,243,477)             1,075,406              -86.48% 3,185,155         1,608,191      1,576,964              98.06%

 NET UNREALIZED GAIN/(LOSS)
 ON INVESTMENT -                       -                            -                            0.00% -                       -                    -                            0.00%

 TRANSFER TO STATE OF ILLINOIS -                       -                            -                            0.00% (3,302,000)        -                    (3,302,000)             0.00%

   REVENUE GRANT -                       -                            -                            0.00% -                       -                    -                            0.00%

   APPROPRIATIONS FROM STATE -                       -                            -                            -                       -                    -                            0.00%

 NET INCOME/(LOSS) (168,071)          (1,243,477)             1,075,406              -86.48% (116,844)          1,608,191      (1,725,035)             -107.27%



Illinois Finance Authority
Consolidated

Unaudited
Balance Sheet

for the Eight Months Ending February 28,  2011

Actual Actual
February February

2010 2011

ASSETS
  CASH & INVESTMENTS, UNRESTRICTED 32,674,560$           41,301,268$           
  RECEIVABLES, NET 74,873                    59,685                    
  LOAN RECEIVABLE, NET 44,440,567             37,576,994             
  NOTES RECEIVABLE 45,808,874             43,029,874             
  OTHER RECEIVABLES 1,531,498               1,612,930               
  PREPAID EXPENSES 118,352                  111,424                  

  TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 124,648,724           123,692,175           

FIXED ASSETS, NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 61,014                    54,859                    

DEFERRED ISSUANCE COSTS 515,285                  430,017                  

OTHER ASSETS
  CASH, INVESTMENTS & RESERVES 39,517,859             40,614,144             
  VENTURE CAPITAL INVESTMENTS 5,377,739               2,247,981               
  OTHER 3,000,010               3,000,000               

  TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 47,895,608             45,862,125             

TOTAL ASSETS 173,120,631$         170,039,176$         

LIABILITIES
  CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,694,952               1,686,575               
  BONDS PABYABLE 54,385,000             53,715,000             
  OTHER LIABILITIES 2,530,475               2,475,222               

TOTAL LIABILITIES 58,610,427             57,876,797             

EQUITY
  CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 35,608,692             35,608,692             
  RETAINED EARNINGS 27,173,957             26,144,175             
  NET INCOME / (LOSS) 1,608,191               (116,844)                 
  RESERVED/RESTRICTED FUND BALANCE 37,471,193             37,878,185             
  UNRESERVED FUND BALANCE 12,648,171             12,648,171             

TOTAL EQUITY 114,510,204           112,162,379           

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 173,120,631$         170,039,176$         



Number of Material Findings - 1
Finding

Item Number Description Type Comments
Government Auditing Standards: 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100
09-01 Valuation of Venture 

Capital Investments
Significant 
Deficiency

Auditor Recommendation:  The IFA has not had an independent valuation of its 
venture capital investments since fiscal year 2006.  We recommend the Authority 
obtain an independent valuation of the investment portfolio periodically in order to 
support the amounts recorded and disclosed in the financial statements.  Authority 
Response:  The Authority accepted the auditor's recommendation.  The Authority 
has procured a vendor and the valuation of the venture capital portfolio is underway.

          

Illinois Finance Authority
FY09 Audit Finding:   Material 
Update as of February 28, 2011

Percentage Completed



Item Number Description
10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 95 100

Total Number of 4

FY 09 Immaterial Findings

IM09-01 Failure to Report Revenue Bond Information to the Illinois Office of the Comptroller

IM09-02 Inaccurate Agency Report of State Property (C-15)

IM09-03 Lack of Disaster Contingency Testing to Ensure Recovery of Computer Systems

IM09-04 Weaknesses Regarding the Security and Control of Confidential Information

Illinois Finance Authority
FY09 Audit Finding:  Immaterial 
Update as of February 28, 2011

Percentage Completed



Bonds Issued and Outstanding 

as of February 28, 2011

Bonds Issued Since Inception of Illinois Finance Authority

Principal Amount ($)Market Sector#

Agriculture **  61,174,831 319

Education  4,014,598,100 102

Healthcare *  16,022,288,508 326

Industrial  931,142,853 86

Local Government  378,145,000 27

Multifamily/Senior Housing  175,417,900 19

501(c)(3) Not-for Profits  1,776,708,195 132

Exempt Facilities Bonds  275,700,000 8

Environmental issued 

under 20 ILCS 3515/9

 326,630,000 9

$ 23,961,805,387

A 0.3%
E 17.5%
H 67.6%
I 2.3%
L 1.6%
M 0.7%
N 7.6%
P 1.2%
P-ENV 1.3%

Total: 100.0%

Bonds Issued Since Inception

 * Includes CCRC's

** Number of Agriculture bonds has been adjusted to reflect the actual number of Beginner Farmer Bonds issued.

Market Sector

Schedule of Bonds Outstanding by Market Sector

Includes IFA and it's Predecessor Authorities

Principal 

Outstanding

Amount of 

Original Issue

 92,783,613 294,795,709Agriculture

 5,256,170,860 5,810,685,730Education

 14,404,147,564 16,465,612,337Healthcare *

 1,331,099,775 1,538,772,853Industrial

 625,956,238 1,116,059,413Local Government

 304,908,375 742,915,396Multifamily/Senior Housing

 2,406,453,102 2,925,349,996501(c)(3) Not-for Profits

 155,160,000 155,360,000Exempt Facilities Bonds

 673,280,080 770,475,000Environmental issued 

under 20 ILCS 3515/9

$ 29,820,026,433 $ 25,249,959,606

A 0.4%
E 20.8%
H 57.0%
I 5.3%
L 2.5%
M 1.2%
N 9.5%
P 0.6%
P-ENV 2.7%

Total: 100.0%

Principal Outstanding by Market Sector

 * Includes CCRC's

Principal Issued

Current Fiscal Year

Market Sector#

 4,525,669Agriculture - Beginner Farmer 26

 208,340,000Education 5

 1,985,000Financially Distressed Cities 1

 150,000,000Freight Transfer Facilities Bonds 2

 100,000,000Gas Supply 2

 497,820,000Healthcare - Hospital 12

 458,705,000Healthcare - CCRC 16

 17,329,184Industrial Revenue 3

 20,200,000Midwest Disaster Area Bonds 1

 67,310,000501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit 3

 211,488,000Recovery Zone Facilities Bonds 8

$ 1,737,702,853 81

501(c)(3) 3.9%
A-BFB 0.3%
CCRC 26.4%
DC 0.1%
E-PC 12.0%
FTFRB 8.6%
GS 5.8%
HO 28.6%
IRB 1.0%
MWDAB 1.2%
RZFB 12.2%

Total: 100.0%

Bonds Issued - Current Fiscal Year



Bonds Issued between July 01, 2010 and February 28, 2011

Principal Issued

Initial Interest 

RateDate IssuedBond Issue

Bonds 

Refunded

Beginner Farmer Bonds, Series 2011  4,525,669Various-See BelowA-BFB 07/01/2010  0

NorthShore University HealthSystem, Series 2010  136,425,0002.00% to 5.25%HO 07/14/2010  115,800,000

The Clare at Water Tower, Series 2010A&B  87,505,0005.10% to 6.125%CCRC 07/15/2010  87,505,000

Christian Homes, Inc., Series 2010  25,000,0003.40% to 6.125%CCRC 07/29/2010  8,090,000

Bison Gear & Engineering Corporation, Series 2010  9,230,000VRB    0.32%IRB 07/29/2010  0

Institute for Transfusion Medicine, Series 2010  26,500,000VRB    3.60%HO 07/29/2010  0

Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company, Series 2010A  50,000,000VRB    2.125%GS 08/18/2010  0

Annex II, LLC - Rock City Development, Series 2010  4,585,0006.00%RZFB 08/24/2010  0

Greenfields of Geneva, Series 2010A-C  117,600,0007.50% to 8.25%CCRC 08/31/2010  9,185,000

Provena Health, Series 2010C&D  72,000,000VRB    0.29%HO 09/22/2010  0

Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company, Series 2010B  50,000,0002.625%GS 10/05/2010  50,000,000

Fabrication Technologies, Inc., Series 2010  5,140,000DP-VRBIRB 10/15/2010  0

Little Company of Mary Hospital, Series 2010  72,000,0005.25% to 5.50%HO 10/20/2010  0

Beloit Health System, Series 2010  37,895,000VRBHO 10/21/2010  40,325,000

Navistar International Corporation, Series 2010  135,000,0006.50%RZFB 10/26/2010  0

City of East St. Louis, Series 2010  1,985,0003.00%DC 10/26/2010  1,650,000

Swedish Covenant Hospital, Series 2010  20,000,000DP    4.99%HO 11/03/2010  0

University of Chicago Medical Center, Series 2010A&B  92,500,000VRB    0.24%HO 11/09/2010  0

Admiral at the Lake, Series 2010A-E  202,350,0007.25% to 8.00%CCRC 11/19/2010  0

BPJ Investments, LLC - Nueco, Inc., Series 2010  2,803,000DP-VRB    4.00%RZFB 12/16/2010  0

Proctor Hospital, Series 2010  15,500,000DP-VRB    2.59202%HO 12/16/2010  0

The Old Town School of Folk Music, Inc., Series 2010  10,000,000DP-VRB    4.25%E-PC 12/20/2010  0

KONE Centre, Series 2010  20,200,000DP-VRB    2.30%MWDAB 12/21/2010  0

CenterPoint Joliet Terminal Railroad, Series 2010A&B  150,000,000DP-VRB    2.1074%FTFRB 12/21/2010  0

East-West University, Series 2010  30,000,000DP-VRB    2.025%E-PC 12/22/2010  0

Quest Academy, Series 2010  3,200,000DP-VRB    1.987016%501(c)(3) 12/22/2010  2,100,000

Rochelle Energy LLC, Series 2010  10,000,000DP    4.53%RZFB 12/22/2010  0

Illinois College, Series 2010  3,900,000DP    4.22%E-PC 12/23/2010  0

Alef Sausage, Series 2010  2,959,184DP    4.25%IRB 12/23/2010  0

Silver Cross Hospital & Medical Center, Series 2010  25,000,000DP-VRB    1.1973%HO 12/27/2010  0

St. Francis High School College Preparatory, Series 2010  4,500,000DP-VRB    2.18%501(c)(3) 12/28/2010  0

JH Naperville Hotel, LLC, Series 2010  30,000,0005.16%RZFB 12/28/2010  0

1200 Internationale Parkway, LLC, Series 2010  3,500,000DP-VRB    3.97%RZFB 12/28/2010  0

Mercy Circle, Series 2010  26,250,000DP-VRB    2.10%CCRC 12/29/2010  0

SMART Hotels/Olympia Chicago, Series 2010  21,500,000DP-VRB    1.9876%RZFB 12/30/2010  0

Mayo Properties, LLC, Series 2010  4,100,000DP-VRB    3.825%RZFB 12/30/2010  0

DePaul University, Series 2011A&B  164,440,0005.25% to 6.125%E-PC 02/02/2011  50,600,000

CHF-Normal, LLC-Illinois State University, Series 2011  59,610,0005.50% to 7.00%501(c)(3) 02/23/2011  0

Total Bonds Issued in Fiscal Year 2011 

Fixed Rate Bonds as shown

DP-VRB = initial interest rate at the time of issuance on a Direct Purchase Bond

      VRB = initial interest rate at the time of issuance on a Variable Rate Bond that does not include the cost of the LOC arrangement .                             

Beginner Farmer Bonds interest rates are shown in section below.

Legend:

$ 1,737,702,853 $ 365,255,000

ref:  T:\Bond Reports\Bond Issued Reports\Bonds Issued by Fiscal Year-Board Book.rpt



CountyAcresBorrower Date Funded

Initial 

Interest 

Rate Loan Proceeds

Beginner Farmer Bonds

Stortzum, Brent A. 07/21/2010 4.25%  157,500  38.00 Effingham

Tolley, Daniel Steven 07/23/2010 4.50%  106,900  82.30 Knox

Justison, Keri L. 07/30/2010 4.25%  249,736  106.00 Montgomery

Justison, David M. 07/30/2010 4.25%  249,736  106.00 Montgomery

Will, Richard & Linda 07/30/2010 4.00%  206,712  71.30 Cumberland

Smithenry, Eric J. 07/30/2010 4.25%  135,000  20.00 Jasper

Stinnett, Sean & Cheryl 08/05/2010 4.75%  224,000  52.84 Macoupin

Alt, Lawrence & Loretta 08/12/2010 4.00%  100,000  26.67 Vermilion

Alt, James & Jo Ellen 08/12/2010 4.00%  102,667  26.67 Vermilion

Kopplin, Seth A. 08/16/2010 4.00%  184,000  73.62 Effingham

Gittleson, Brock 09/21/2010 4.46%  207,500  50.00 Lee

Mellendorf, Mark 09/21/2010 4.25%  25,200  20.00 Clay

Fritschle, Derek 10/07/2010 4.00%  125,000  78.00 Richland

Stahl, Rodney Lynn 10/25/2010 4.00%  122,500  50.00 Stark

Stahl, Kendall 10/25/2010 4.50%  137,500  50.00 Stark

Rosenthal, Darin T. 10/29/2010 4.00%  250,000  80.00 Montgomery

Stephens, Douglas & Cindy 11/05/2010 3.50%  240,000  60.00 Livingston

Stephens, Derek & Brynn 11/05/2010 3.50%  240,000  60.00 Livingston

Richter, Brett Alan 11/05/2010 2.76%  120,000  46.00 Clinton

Truckenbrod, Steven 11/18/2010 5.25%  104,000  40.00 Ogle

Elliott, Lee Wayne & Latisha 11/30/2010 4.25%  112,000  80.00 Jasper

Mattingly II, Douglas E. 12/27/2010 3.75%  77,120  30.00 Edgar

McLaughlin, Wade C. 12/27/2010 4.67%  150,000  60.70 Henry

Ridgely, Jordan 12/27/2010 3.95%  316,000  149.00 Hamilton

Werkheiser, Wade 12/27/2010 3.90%  345,330  161.00 Henry

Waldrop, Ryan D. & Heather D. 12/28/2010 4.25%  237,268  130.60 Lawrence

Total Beginner Farmer Bonds Issued $ 4,525,669  1,748.70

AG Debt Restructuring Guarantee

Initial 

Interest 

RateDate Funded Loan Proceeds State Guarantee

Nelson, Kenneth 11/08/2010 6.00%  410,000  348,500

$ 410,000 $ 348,500Total AG Debt Restructuring Guarantee

AG Farm Purchase Guarantee

Initial 

Interest 

RateDate Funded Loan Proceeds State Guarantee

Kerber, Gregory & Jan 10/28/2010 5.85%  500,000  425,000

$ 500,000 $ 425,000Total AG Farm Purchase Guarantee

$ 910,000 $ 773,500Total Agriculture Guarantees

ref:  T:\Bond Reports\Bond Issued Reports\Bonds Issued by Fiscal Year-Board Book.rpt



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of  Debt [ a ]

ref:  T:\Bond Reports\Schedule of Debt\Schedule of Debt by Market Sector.xls\Fiscal Year 2011 Prepared by:  J. K. Kuhn
3/2/2011  10:58 AM

Illinois Finance Authority  "IFA"
306     Agriculture 4
93       Education 5

234     Healthcare 7
76       Industrial Development [includes Recovery Zone/Midwest Disa 8
22       Local Government 11
18       Multifamily/Senior Housing 17

97       501(c)(3) Not-for Profits 18
5         Exempt Facilities Bonds 19

851     Total IFA Principal Outstanding

Illinois Development Finance Authority "IDFA" [ b ]

4         Education 31
5         Healthcare 33

69       Industrial Development 34
33       Local Government 35
16       Multifamily/Senior Housing 39
99       501(c)(3) Not-for Profits 40
1         Exempt Facilities Bonds 41

223     Total IDFA Principal Outstanding

Illinois Rural Bond Bank "IRBB" [ b ]

17       Bond Bank Revenue Bonds 75
1         Conduit Debt 74

18       Total IRBB Principal Outstanding

99       Illinois Health Facilities Authority "IHFA" 64
49       Illinois Educational Facilities Authority "IEFA" 62

561     Illinois Farm Development Authority "IFDA" [ f ] 71

1,801  

General Purpose Moral Obligations

17       Issued through IRBB - Local Government Pools 75
7         Issued through IFA - Local Government Pools 12
2         Issued through IFA - Illinois Medical District Commission 15

26       Total General Moral Obligations

Financially Distressed Cities Moral Obligations

2         Issued through IFA 14
1         Issued through IDFA 37

3         Total Financially Distressed Cities

State Component Unit Bonds [ c ]

17       Issued through IRBB 75
1         Issued through IDFA 32
1         Issued through IFA 6

19       Total State Component Unit Bonds

1         Midwest Disaster Bonds [Flood Relief] 10

-      Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds; 
8         Recovery Zone Facilities Bonds 9

-      Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds

Illinois Power Agency

28,150,000,000$    

Principal Outstanding

26,385,000$                   20,220,000$                  

February 28, 2011
 Program 

Limitations 

26,385,000$                   

50,729,000$                  

257,110,000                  

11,558,768,000             
834,653,000                  

Conduit debt issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(a)] which does not constitute an indebtedness or an obligation, either general or moral, or a pledge of 
the full faith or a loan of the Authority, the State of Illinois or any Political Subdivision of the State within the purview of any constitutional or statutory limitation or provisions with special 
limited obligations of the Authority secured under provisions of the individual Bond Indentures and Loan Agreements with the exception of the bonds identified below in Section I (b) -- 
General Purpose Moral Obligation/State Component Parts -- which are subject to the $28.15B cap in Section 845-5(a).

Total Illinois Finance Authority Debt

Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/801-40(w)]

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(a)]

147,219,000                   
1,025,002,000                

39,640,000                    40,000,000                     

150,000,000$         94,385,000$                   

28,000,000                     

Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/825-60]

20,200,000$                  

42,196,000                     

June 30, 2010

46,455,000$                   

1,313,239,000                

3,721,552,000                
10,851,968,000              

345,870,000                   
264,060,000                   

3,870,352,000               

2,592,888,000$              

2,908,471,000$              

22,460,000$                  

2,626,020,000$             

2,240,000                      

219,360,000                  

24,860,000                     

26,385,000                     

562,917,000                   
386,034,000                   

974,757,000                  
24,860,000                    

2,248,980,000$             

3,565,000                      

42,055,000$                  

24,576,679,000$           

1,419,572,000$             

26,680,000                    

86,540,000$                  

-$                                

-$                              

 City/Counties Ceded 
Voluntarily to IFA 

ARRA Act of 2009 Volume 
Cap Allocated [ h ]

February 28, 2011

Section I (d)

 Designated by the Governor of the State of Illinois to manage and coordinate the re-allocation of Federal ARRA Volume Cap and the issuance of Recovery 
Zone Bonds in the State of Illinois to fully utilize RZBs before December 31, 2010. 

 Available "Ceded" 
Volume Cap 

Bonds Issued as of 
February 28, 2011

73,680,000$         

Principal Outstanding

-$                      

346,386,000                  

3,825,000$                    

7,390,000$                    

20,220,000$                  
13,890,000                    
4,115,000                      

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(b)]

 Remaining 
Capacity 

-$                                       

130,300,000                  

159,244,000                  

18,217,592,000$           

130,500,000                   
1,356,436,000               

157,979,000                   

16,831,623,000$            

404,660,000                   

38,225,000$                  

3,573,321,000$    

Section I (b)

1,446,134,000$              

2,390,000                       

23,849,946,000$            

42,055,000$                   

28,775,000$                   

June 30, 2010 February 28, 2011

June 30, 2010

Section II

-$                                

June 30, 2010

1,000,457,000$              

 Remaining 
Capacity 

 Remaining 
Capacity 

63,460,000$         

42,610,000$         

Designated exclusive Issuer by the Governor of the State of Illinois to issue Midwest Disaster Area Bonds in Illinois, February 11, 2010.

Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations 

 Program 
Limitations 

1,495,071,000$    

4,000,000,000$    

20,220,000                    

145,665,000                  

41,506,000                    

496,446,000                  

 Remaining 
Capacity February 28, 2011

 Program 
Limitations 

Section I (a) Principal Outstanding

2,395,000$                     
4,660,000                       

50,000,000$           

45,828,000$                   
4,863,000                       

7,055,000$                     

1,515,271,000$      

14,580,000                     

Section I (c)

4,000,000,000$      

16,940,000$                  12,900,000$           4,040,000$           
292,400,000$                

666,972,000$                 

133,846,000$                 
218,720,000$         

-$                        



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of  Debt [ a ]

ref:  T:\Bond Reports\Schedule of Debt\Schedule of Debt by Market Sector.xls\Fiscal Year 2011 Prepared by:  J. K. Kuhn
3/2/2011  10:58 AM

Agri Debt Guarantees [Restructuring Existing Debt] 87
97 Fund # 994 - Fund Balance   $ 9,940,751

AG Loan Guarantee Program [ e ]

55 Fund # 205 - Fund Balance  $ 7,651,586

12 Agri Industry Loan Guarantee Program 90
1 Renewable Fuels 91
2 Farm Purchase Guarantee Program 93

29 Specialized Livestock Guarantee Program 89
11 Young Farmer Loan Guarantee Program 92

152 Total State Guarantees

116 Fire Truck Revolving Loan Program               Fund # 572 161 157

10 Ambulance Revolving Loan Program             Fund # 334 160 156

Environmental [Large Business]
9 Issued through IFA 23

19 Issued through IDFA 46

28 Total Environmental [Large Business]

Environmental [Small Business]

28

#
Participation Loans

50 Business & Industry 115
22 Agriculture 116

72 Participation Loans exluding Defaults & Allowances

##

153

1 Illinois Facility Fund 145

4 Local Government Direct Loans 146

5 FmHA Loans 147

2 Renewable Energy [RED Fund] 148

84 Total Loans Outstanding

[ a ] Total subject to change; late month payment data may not be included at issuance of report.
[ b ] State Component Unit Bonds included in balance.
[ c ] Does not include Unamortized issuance premium as reported in Audited Financials.
[ d ] Program Limitation reflects the increase to $3 billion effective 01/01/2010 under P.A. 96-103.
[ e ] Program Limitation reflects the increase from $75 million to $225 million effective 01/01/2010 under P.A. 96-103.
[ f ] Beginner Farmer Bonds are currently updated annually; new bonds will be added under the Illinois Finance Authority when the bond closes.
[ g ]

[ h ]

[ i ]

963,250.00$           326,472.42$                  

34,353,016.96$      25,548,359.37$              

1,755,664.28$                2,000,000.00$        1,705,249.65$               

19,254,644.81$             

495,772.95$                   

1,000,000.00$        

1,289,750.00$        

4,969,295.79                  

21,987,618.64$              

1,000,000.00$                

309,303.50$                   

Total Participation Loans

Plus:  Legacy IDFA Loans in Default

Less:  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Total Environment Bonds Issued under Act

3,000,000,000$      [ d ]

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501 Sections 825-80 and 825-85 

67,529,000$    

47,229,000$    

316,440,000                   

Principal Outstanding

23,020,157.95        
6,079,859.01          

29,100,016.96$      

17,018,322.85                13,998,526.86               

Illinois Finance Authority Funds at Risk

June 30, 2010 Original Amount 

24,445,000      
11,104,000$    

20,300,000$    

43,261,000$               

10,342,000$               
23,363,000                 

18,298,000$               

491,000           

June 30, 2010 February 28, 2011

February 28, 2011

2,434,000                   

991,000                      

Issued under the Illinois Environmental Facilities Financing Act [20 ILCS 3515/9]

Section V

7,006,800$                    590$                    

June 30, 2010 February 28, 2011
Principal Outstanding

141,702,000$  

June 30, 2010

-$                                

15,527,000$     

Clean Coal, Coal ,Renewable Energy and                             Energy 
Efficiency Projects

Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501 Section 825-65(f); 825-70 and 825-75] - see also P.A. 96-103 effective 01/01/2010

-$                                       

18,571,316.43$             

1,000,000.00$               

673,280,000$                

2,500,000,000$      

February 28, 2011
Principal Outstanding

673,280,000$                

3,786,033.10                 

1,143,112.67                 

15,928,396.00$             

688,505,000$                 
372,065,000                   

8,625,000        
2,564,000        

6,131,000                   

June 30, 2010

17,515,298$         

61,559,000$               

8,791,000         

832,213$              

842,000            
5,211,000         

14,216,000       

February 28, 2011
Principal Outstanding

Midwest Disaster Bonds - Illinois Counties eligible for Midwest Disaster Bonds include Adams, Calhoun, Clark, Coles, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Hancock, 
Henderson, Jasper, Jersey, Lake, Lawrence, Mercer, Rock Island, Whiteside and Winnebago.

18,730,135$    

993,200$         

 Remaining 
Capacity 

1,751,720,000$    

75,000,000$         

1,826,720,000$    

4,572,789.57                 

294,526.74$                  

2,425,000,000$      

Section VII

Note:  Due to deposits in transit, the Cash Balance at the Illinois Office of the Comptroller may differ from the Illinois Finance Authority's General Ledger.

Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations 

316,115,000$                
357,165,000                  

688,505,000$                 

-                                  75,000,000$           -$                              

Section VI

6,003,342$                    

Section III

2,542,444$          

385,000,000$  323,441,000$  

 Fund Balance 

46,656,000$     

 Appropriation Fiscal 
Year 2011 

181,739,000$  

160,000,000$  

225,000,000$  31,129,000$     

 Program 
Limitations 

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501 Sections 830-25 (see also P.A.96-103); 830-30; 830-35; 830-45 and 830-50]

Section IV  State 
Exposure 

Recovery Zone Bonds - Federal government allocated volume cap directly to all 102 Illinois counties and 8 municipalities with population of 100,000 or more.                    
[Public Act 96-1020]

3,000,000,000$    

 Remaining 
Capacity 

 Program 
Limitations 

 Remaining 
Capacity 

IFA is working with all of the 110 entities to encourage voluntary waivers to ensure that these resources are used to support project financing before the program expires on 
December 31, 2010.

2,069,000         



 

MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 8, 2011, MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE OF THE 
WHOLE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Illinois Finance Authority (the “IFA”), pursuant to notice duly given, 
held a Committee of the Whole Meeting at 8:30 a.m. on February 8, 2011, at the Chicago Office of the IFA at 180 
North Stetson, Suite 2555, Chicago, IL 60601. 
 

Members Present: 
1. William A. Brandt, Jr., Chairman  
2. Michael W. Goetz, Vice Chairman  
3. Dr. William Barclay (joined at 8:42 a.m.) 
4. Gila J. Bronner  
5.  James J. Fuentes 
6.  Norman M. Gold (joined at 8:45 a.m.) 
7.  Terrence M. O’Brien  
8.  Bradley A. Zeller 
 

Members Absent: 
9.    Ronald E. DeNard 
10.  John “Jack” Durburg 
11.  Dr. Roger D. Herrin 
12.  Edward H. Leonard, Sr.  
13.  Joseph McInerney 
14.  Heather D. Parish  
15.  Roger E. Poole  
 
Vacancies: None 

Staff Present:  
Christopher B. Meister, Executive Director 
Brendan M. Cournane, General Counsel 
Rich K. Frampton, Vice President 
Pam A. Lenane, Vice President 
Arthur S. Friedson, Chief HR Officer 
Ximena Granda, Asst. CFO 
Ahad F. Syed, Asst. Board Sect. /Admin. Asst.  
 
Staff Participating by Telephone:  
Jim Senica, Sr. Funding Manager 
 
IFA Advisors Present:  
Courtney Shea, Sr. VP, Acacia Financial 
Fiona McCarthy, Assoc., Acacia Financial 
Shannon Williams, Assoc., Scott Balice Strategies 

 
 
GENERAL BUSINESS 
 
Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
Chairman Brandt informally called the meeting to order at 8:35 a.m. with the above Members present. He welcomed 
Members of the Board, IFA staff and financial advisors present at the meeting.  
 
Chairman’s Remarks 
 
Chairman Brandt noted for the record that Mr. John Filan, former IFA Executive Director, is an employee of 
Chairman Brandt’s company Development Specialists, Inc. Chairman Brandt stated that Mr. Filan will not be 
working on projects in the State of Illinois.  
 
Dr. Barclay joined the meeting at 8:42 a.m. 
 
The Chairman remarked that he noted number of the items on today’s agenda and is concerned about the recent 
decrease in project volume.  
 
Mr. Gold joined the meeting at 8:44 a.m. 
 
The Chairman then asked the Executive Director to present his message.  
 
Executive Director’s Presentation 
 
Director Meister thanked the Chairman and began his presentation. The Director stated that he understood the 
Chairman’s concern regarding the relatively short agenda. In anticipation of shorter agendas for the March and April 
meetings the Director stated that he would encourage the Board to hold the March and April Board Meetings at 
10:30 a.m. 
 
 
 



 2 

The Director explained that in today’s handouts to the Board, there is a chart which displays issuance comparisons 
between calendar year 2009 and calendar year 2010. The Director noted that the IFA staff reduced head count in 
anticipation of reduced volume of bond issuances for calendar year 2010. There was indeed a drop in volume early 
2010. However, there was an upswing in the second half of 2009 due primarily to healthcare. There was also an 
upswing in issuances at the end of 2010 due to the expiration of a few key programs offered by the IFA.  
 
The Chairman stated that he believed that 2011 would be a relatively difficult year due to the fact that healthcare 
may not be at 2010 levels. Furthermore, he noted that the Recovery Zone Facility Bond Program has expired at the 
end of 2010 and that Midwestern Disaster Area Bonds (“MDABs”) are projected to be lower than 2010 levels.  
 
Director Meister noted that the IFA is currently at 91% of revenue of our budget for the fiscal year. The Director 
explained to the Board that this trend in issuances may be due to increased anxiety in the bond finance markets. He 
noted that certain pundits are talking about a looming catastrophe for the “muni” market. However, the good news is 
that the IFA has a diverse array of important tools such as the MDABs and Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds 
(“QECBs”). The availability of these tools, however, hinges on their applicability and MDABs in particular are 
constrained to certain geographic areas. Furthermore, Director Meister explained that the Authority is working with 
Lake County Partners in a fee sharing agreement and would like to extend this partnership to other counties.  
 
Vice Chairman Goetz asked Director Meister if the recent falloff in business volume was due to decreased head 
count. Director Meister answered in the negative and noted that the IFA core business volume is linked to the 
relationships Mr. Frampton and Ms. Lenane have established with repeat borrowers. He believes that our market 
share has remained constant. 
 
Director Meister explained that Mr. Friedson is working diligently with the Farm Bureau and the Banker’s 
Association in finding and recruiting an experienced agriculture lender as well as a junior agriculture lender. The 
Director was optimistic that once the financial community realizes that the State has made difficult policy decisions 
the market will once again value the State’s moral obligation.  
 
The Chairman then appointed Ms. Bronner as Chairwoman of the Audit Committee.  
 
Director Meister moved the discussion to the proposed changes to SEC rules that would alter the definition of 
“municipal advisors” to include appointed members of Boards such as the Authority. The Director said that this 
definition would make it difficult for the IFA to retain and attract Board Members. Director Meister explained that 
the Authority had spoken to the offices of Senators Richard Durbin and Mark Kirk of Illinois as well as 
Representative Michael Quigley of Illinois regarding the proposed rule change. The IFA plans to file comments 
opposing the proposed changes to SEC rules.  
 
Director Meister explained to the Committee of the Whole that the Office of the Auditor General of the State of 
Illinois believes that the financial cash flow figures of the IFA for FY09 have been mischaracterized due to a new 
accounting rule. The IFA believes that this issue is immaterial and has zero impact on its bottom line. Furthermore, 
the IFA believes, after speaking with knowledgeable individuals, that a restatement of the cash flow figures for these 
stale financials from FY09 will unnecessarily create difficulties for the IFA. The IFA has spoken with the Illinois 
Auditor General and he seems open to the IFA’s position in this matter. Ms. Bronner asked Director Meister if the 
IFA has a draft message to the Auditor General regarding this matter ready at this moment. The Director stated that 
the Authority did not, however, the Authority would submit one shortly.  
 
The Chairman thanked the Executive Director for his report and asked Ms. Granda for the financials.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

Financial Reports  
 
Ms. Granda presented her report on the financials.  
 
She explained that the gross revenue year-to-date for January was $4.932 Million or $1.710 Million over budget. 
Total operating expenses were $2.791 Million or $169,639 under budget. Year-to-date net income thru January 2011 
was $3.255 Million or $2.993 Million higher than budget and $1.759 Million higher than the same period last fiscal 
year.  
 
Lastly, Ms. Granda reported that the Authority has received the first draft of the audit report. This draft audit report 
included only three (3) findings out of a total of eleven (11) items which leads her to believe that the other eight (8) 
findings will be considered immaterial. Due to the fact that this report is a draft it is subject to change.  
 
The Chairman thanked Ms. Granda for her report and asked Mr. Cournane for his report on the Bond Watch List.  
 
Mr. Cournane reported that as of yesterday, February 7, 2011, Midway Broadcasting had retained Loop Capital as a 
financial advisor and is prepared to file for foreclosure. The Chairman remarked that the Authority’s priority ought 
to be to protect its position to collect on the deal.  
 
Mr. Cournane explained that the Bank of Litchfield has realigned the collateral of its loan. The next court hearing is 
scheduled for late March 2011, after the March Board meeting. 
 
The Chairman thanked Mr. Cournane for his report and asked Mr. Senica for his report on Participation Loans.  
 
Mr. Senica reported that the new Pere Marquette deal, that will pay off IFA’s existing loan, is proceeding and is 
expected close in approximately 60 days.  
 
Mr. Senica explained that the IFA has been meeting with Morton Community Bank regarding the Precision Laser 
loan. The bank is seeking to buy-back the entire loan on an approximately 50% discount from the IFA.   
 
Lastly, Mr. Senica stated that in regards to the Custom Wood loan the bank has leased a portion of the building the 
IFA has retained as collateral. The building is currently in the process of being sold.  
 
Chairman Brandt thanked Mr. Senica for his report and asked for the Committee Reports. 
 
Committee Reports 
 
Venture Capital Committee 
 
Mr. Fuentes, Chairman of the Venture Capital Committee, reported that the Venture Capital Committee had 
discussed the IFA Venture Capital portfolio. Mr. Fuentes reported that the valuation has been marked down as a 
result of the valuation study performed by Scott Balice Strategies (“Scott Balice”). Mr. Fuentes stated that Mr. Dean 
Balice and Ms. Lois Scott of Scott Balice believe that there is a potential market for the Authority’s portfolio. There 
is limited discussion regarding pricing. Chairman Brandt recommends a Request for Proposal process.  
 
Chairman Brandt thanked Mr. Fuentes for his report and asked Ms. Lenane for the Healthcare Committee’s report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 4 

Healthcare Committee 
 
Ms. Lenane explained that Sarah Bush Lincoln will do a private placement with their bank. Furthermore, Smith 
Crossing and Roseland Community Hospital will close before the end of FY11. It is expected that in the coming 
months that the levels of mergers and acquisitions will increase and that the banks will be charging more for a letter 
of credit. At the moment the IFA staff is working on implementing a Medicaid Receivables program the Board 
approved at its December 2010 meeting. Lastly, Ms. Lenane noted the importance of Continuing Care Retirement 
Communities (“CCRCs”) to the IFA financial picture. Ms. Lenane noted that it appears likely that the market will 
slowly “absorb” the high influx of CCRCs issuances from 2010 before new borrowers come to authorities such as 
the IFA.  
 
Chairman Brandt thanked Ms. Lenane for her report and asked Mr. Zeller for the Agriculture Committee’s report.  
 
Agriculture Committee  
 
Mr. Zeller reported that the Agriculture Committee met at its regular scheduled time to discuss some of the items on 
today’s agenda. The Agriculture Committee gives its recommendation for the three (3) Beginning Farmer Bonds for 
today’s Board Meeting. There is limited discussion regarding volume cap allocation for Beginning Farmer Bond 
closings.  
 
Chairman Brandt thanked Mr. Zeller for his report and asked for the Project Reports.  
 
Project Reports 
 
Mr. Senica presented the following projects for consideration:  
 
No. 1A:     Lucas John & Megan Marie Emmerich – $114,000 – 40 acres 
 

Request for approval of a Final Bond Resolution for the issuance of Beginning Farmer Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $114,000 for the purchase of approximately 40 acres of farmland. This 
project is located in unincorporated Jasper County, near West Liberty, IL.  

 
No. 1B:               Rodney A. & Christine M. King – $80,000 – 40 acres 
 

Request for approval of a Final Bond Resolution for the issuance of Beginning Farmer Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $80,000 for the purchase of approximately 40 acres of farmland. This 
project is located in unincorporated Stark County, near Wyoming, IL.  
 

No. 1C:               Joshua A. & Bonnie L. Dotson – $125,000 – 31 acres 
 

Request for approval of a Final Bond Resolution for the issuance of Beginning Farmer Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $125,000 for the purchase of approximately 31 acres of farmland. This 
project is located in unincorporated Will County, near Lynwood, IL.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 5 

Higher Education, Cultural and Other Non-Healthcare 501(c)(3)’s  
 
Mr. Frampton presented the following project for consideration:  
 
No. 2:  Columbia College Chicago - $15,000,000 – Preliminary 
 

Columbia College Chicago is requesting approval of a Preliminary Bond Resolution in an amount 
not-to-exceed $15,000,000. The proposed project will enable Columbia College Chicago to (i) 
refund outstanding IFA Series 1998 Bonds; and (ii) pay costs of issuance.  

 
Healthcare 
 
Ms. Lenane presented the following items for consideration:  
 
No. 3:  The Carle Foundation - $400,000,000 – Preliminary 
 

The Carle Foundation (the “Carle”) is requesting approval of a Preliminary Bond Resolution in an 
amount not-to-exceed $400,000,000. The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2011 Bonds, 
together with other monies provided by the Carle, will be used to: (i) refinance existing taxable 
debt; (ii) pay or reimburse the Carle and/or the other tax-exempt affiliates of the Carle, for costs of 
acquiring, constructing, renovating, remodeling and equipping certain of its health facilities, 
including, but not limited to, costs associated with an approximately 360,000 square foot, 
approximately 136-bed, nine-story heart and vascular institute  located in Urbana, Illinois; (iii) pay 
capitalized interest; (iv) fund a debt service reserve fund; (v) provide working capital; and (vi) pay 
costs of issuance. 

 
Resolutions 
 
Mr. Senica presented the following project for consideration:  
 
No. 4: Delegation of authority to Executive Director to negotiate the Repurchase of an IFA Loan 

Participation (IFA Loan #B-LL-TX-6224) 
 
The Board agreed to this delegation as proposed.  
 
Other Business  
 
None.  
 
Adjournment 
 
The Chairman thanked the Board, IFA staff and the financial advisors for appearing at the meeting and asked if 
there was any additional information for the Board’s consideration. Hearing none he asked for a motion to adjourn 
the meeting. Mr. Gold moved to adjourn the meeting and Ms. Bronner seconded the motion. The Committee of the 
Whole unanimously agreed to adjourn the meeting.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 11:10 a.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by: 
Ahad Syed 
Assistant Board Secretary 
 



 

MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 8, 2011, MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

 
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Illinois Finance Authority (the “IFA” or the “Authority”), pursuant to 
notice duly given, held a Board Meeting at 11:30 a.m. on Tuesday, February 8, 2011, at the Prudential Plaza 
Conference Center at 130 East Randolph Street, 7th Floor, Chicago, IL 60601.  
 

Members Present: 
1. William A. Brandt, Jr., Chairman  
2. Michael W. Goetz, Vice Chairman  
3. Dr. William Barclay  
4. Gila J. Bronner  
5.  James J. Fuentes 
6.  Norman M. Gold  
7.  Terrence M. O’Brien  
8.  Bradley A. Zeller 
 

Members Absent: 
9.    Ronald E. DeNard 
10.  John “Jack” Durburg 
11.  Dr. Roger D. Herrin 
12.  Edward H. Leonard, Sr.  
13.  Joseph McInerney 
14.  Heather D. Parish  
15.  Roger E. Poole  
 
Vacancies: None 

 
 
GENERAL BUSINESS 
 
Call to Order, Roll Call and Chairman’s Remarks 
 
Chairman Brandt called the meeting to order at 11:30 a.m. with the above Members present. The Chairman 
welcomed Members of the Board, IFA staff and all guests. He then asked Assistant Board Secretary, Mr. Syed, to 
call the roll. There being eight (8) Members present, Mr. Syed declared a quorum present.  
 
Chairman Brandt explained that certain financial tools available to the Authority have accelerated a number of 
projects to the Authority at the end of Calendar Year 2010. Due to this acceleration the agenda for the months of 
January and February 2011 has been relatively shorter.  
 
Chairman Brandt noted that the Authority’s March 8, 2011, Board Meeting will be moved to 10:30 a.m. if the 
agenda is as short as expected.  
 
Acceptance of Financial Statements and Minutes 
 
Financial statements for the period ending January 31, 2011, and Minutes for both the Committee of the Whole and 
Board of Directors Meetings held on January 18, 2011, were presented to the Board. Chairman Brandt stated that the 
Authority’s Financial Statements and such Minutes were reviewed at the regularly scheduled Committee of the 
Whole Meeting held at 8:30 a.m. The Chairman requested a motion to approve the January 31, 2011, Financial 
Statements and Minutes for both the Committee of the Whole and Board of Directors Meetings held on January 18, 
2011.  
 
The motion was made by Vice Chairman Goetz and seconded by Dr. Barclay. The January 31, 2011, Financial 
Statements and Minutes for both the Committee of the Whole and Board of Director’s Meetings held on January 18, 
2011, were unanimously approved by the Members of the Board.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

Project Approvals 
 
Chairman Brandt asked Mr. Frampton, Vice President, to present the projects for consideration to the Board. The 
Chairman explained that all projects are reviewed by a staff Credit Committee and all agriculture, energy and 
healthcare projects are also reviewed at their respective committee’s public hearing each month. Finally, each 
project is discussed at the Committee of the Whole Meeting held at 8:30 a.m. before the Board Meeting.  
 
Mr. Frampton presented the following projects for approval:  
 
Agriculture – No Guests 
 
No. 1A:     Lucas John & Megan Marie Emmerich – $114,000 – 40 acres 
 

Request for approval of a Final Bond Resolution for the issuance of Beginning Farmer Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $114,000 for the purchase of approximately 40 acres of farmland. This 
project is located in unincorporated Jasper County, near West Liberty, IL.  

 
No. 1B:               Rodney A. & Christine M. King – $80,000 – 40 acres 
 

Request for approval of a Final Bond Resolution for the issuance of Beginning Farmer Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $80,000 for the purchase of approximately 40 acres of farmland. This 
project is located in unincorporated Stark County, near Wyoming, IL.  
 

No. 1C:               Joshua A. & Bonnie L. Dotson – $125,000 – 31 acres 
 

Request for approval of a Final Bond Resolution for the issuance of Beginning Farmer Bonds in 
an amount not to exceed $125,000 for the purchase of approximately 31 acres of farmland. This 
project is located in unincorporated Will County, near Lynwood, IL.  

 
Higher Education, Cultural and Other Non-Healthcare 501(c)(3)’s – No Guests  
 
No. 2:  Columbia College Chicago - $15,000,000 – Preliminary 
 

Columbia College Chicago is requesting approval of a Preliminary Bond Resolution in an amount 
not-to-exceed $15,000,000. The proposed project will enable Columbia College Chicago to (i) 
refund outstanding IFA Series 1998 Bonds; and (ii) pay costs of issuance.  

 
Healthcare – No Guests 
 
No. 3:  The Carle Foundation - $400,000,000 – Preliminary 
 

The Carle Foundation (the “Carle”) is requesting approval of a Preliminary Bond Resolution in an 
amount not-to-exceed $400,000,000. The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2011 Bonds, 
together with other monies provided by the Carle, will be used to: (i) refinance existing taxable 
debt; (ii) pay or reimburse the Carle and/or the other tax-exempt affiliates of the Carle, for costs of 
acquiring, constructing, renovating, remodeling and equipping certain of its health facilities, 
including, but not limited to, costs associated with an approximately 360,000 square foot, 
approximately 136-bed, nine-story heart and vascular institute  located in Urbana, Illinois; (iii) pay 
capitalized interest; (iv) fund a debt service reserve fund; (v) provide working capital; and (vi) pay 
costs of issuance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

Resolutions – No Guests  
 
No. 4: Delegation of authority to Executive Director to negotiate the Repurchase of an IFA Loan 

Participation (IFA Loan #B-LL-TX-6224) 
 
No guests attended with respect to Items Nos. 1A, 1B, 1C, 2, 3 or 4. Chairman Brandt asked if the Board had any 
questions with respect to Items Nos. 1A, 1B, 1C, 2, 3 or 4. There being none, Chairman Brandt requested leave to 
apply the last unanimous vote in favor of Items Nos. 1A, 1B, 1C, 2, 3 and 4. Item Nos. 1A, 1B, 1C, 2, 3 and 4 
received approval with 8 ayes, 0 nays and 0 abstentions. 
 
Other Business 
 
None.  
 
Adjournment 
 
Chairman Brandt then asked if there was any other business to come before the Board. Hearing none, the Chairman 
requested a motion to adjourn. Upon a motion by Mr. Zeller and seconded by Dr. Barclay, the Board unanimously 
voted to adjourn by 11:42 a.m.  
 
Minutes submitted by:  
Ahad Syed 
Assistant Board Secretary  



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum 
 
To:  IFA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Jim Senica and Lorrie Karcher 
 
Date:  March 8, 2011 
 
Re:  Overview Memo for Beginning Farmer Bonds 
 
 

• Borrower/Project Name:  Beginning Farmer Bonds 
 

• Locations:  Throughout Illinois 
 

• Board Action Requested:  Final Bond Resolution for the attached projects 
 

• Amount:  Up to $477,000 maximum of new money for each project 
 

• Project Type:  Beginning Farmer Revenue Bonds 
 
• Total Requested: $869,450 
 
• Calendar Year Summary: (as of March 8, 2011) 

– Volume Cap:  $30,000,000 
– Volume Cap Committed:  $2,131,545 
– Volume Remaining:  27,868,455 
– Average Acreage Farm Size:  49 
– Number of Farms Financed:  13 

 

• IFA Benefits: 
– Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds – no direct IFA or State funds at risk 
– New Money Bonds:   

– convey tax-exempt status  
– will use dedicated 2011 IFA Volume Cap set-aside for Beginning Farmer transactions  

 

• IFA Fees:   
• One-time closing fee will total 1.50% of the bond amount for each project  
 

• Structure/Ratings:  
• Bonds to be purchased directly as a nonrated investment held until maturity by the Borrower’s 

Bank 
• The Borrower’s Bank will be secured by the Borrower’s assets, as on a commercial loan 
• Interest rates, terms, and collateral are negotiated between the Borrower and the Participating 

Bank, just as with any commercial loan 
• Workouts are negotiated directly between each Borrower and Bank, just as on any secured 

commercial loan 
 
• Bond Counsel:     Burke, Burns & Pinelli, Ltd 

Stephen F. Welcome, Esq. 
   Three First National Plaza, Suite 4300 
   Chicago, IL  60602 
 
 



Beginning Farmer Bonds  Final Bond Resolution 
Page 2  March 8, 2011 
  Jim Senica and Lorrie Karcher 
 
 
A. 
Project Number:  A-FB-TE-CD-8453 
Borrower(s): Huber, Craig A. & Cara Mz 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Lanark, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $295,450 
Use of Funds: Farmland – 70.5 acres 
Purchase Price: $345,450 / ($4,900 per ac)   
  %Borrower Equity 5% 
  % USDA Farm Service Agency 45% (Subordinate Financing) 
  %IFA 50% 
County/Region: County/Region: Carroll / Northwest 
Lender/Bond Purchaser Farmers National Bank of Prophetstown / Doug Vanderlaan 
Legislative Districts:   Congressional: 16th, Donald Manzullo 

State Senate: 45th, Tim Bivins 
State House: 89th, Jim Sacia 
 

Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a thirty (30) year amortization 
schedule, with the first principal payment date to begin one year from the date of closing. Accrued interest 
on the unpaid balance hereof shall be paid annually, with the first interest payment date to begin one year 
from the date of closing with the thirtieth and final payment of all outstanding balances due thirty years 
from the date of closing. 

 
 
B. 
Project Number:  A-FB-TE-CD-8454 
Borrower(s): Mickley, James V. 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Colona, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $248,000 
Use of Funds: Farmland – 120 acres 
Purchase Price: $496,000 / ($4,133 per ac)  
  %Borrower Equity 5% 
  % USDA Farm Service Agency 45% (Subordinate Financing) 
  %IFA 50% 
County/Region: Henry / Northwest 
Lender/Bond Purchaser Farmers National Bank of Prophetstown / Garett Plumley 
Legislative Districts:   Congressional: 17th, Bobby Schilling 

State Senate: 36th, Mike Jacobs 
State House: 71st, Richard Morthland 

 
Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a thirty (30) year amortization 
schedule, with the first principal payment date to begin on March 1, 2012. Accrued interest on the unpaid 
balance hereof shall be paid annually, with the first interest payment date to begin on March 1, 2012 with 
the thirtieth and final payment of all outstanding balances due thirty years from the date of closing. 

 
 



Beginning Farmer Bonds  Final Bond Resolution 
Page 3  March 8, 2011 
  Jim Senica and Lorrie Karcher 
  

* Information enclosed in the border is to be considered confidential and may be exempt 
from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 

 
C. 
Project Number:  A-FB-TE-CD-8455 
Borrower(s): Vandersnick, Kane Richard  
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Annawan, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $326,000 
Use of Funds: Farmland – 116 acres 
Purchase Price: $580,000 / ($5,000 per ac)  
  %Borrower Equity 5% 
  % USDA Farm Service Agency 39% (Subordinate Financing) 
  %IFA 56% 
County/Region: Henry / Northwest 
Lender/Bond Purchaser Farmers National Bank of Prophetstown / Garett Plumley 
Legislative Districts:*   Congressional: 14th, Randall Hultgren 

State Senate: 45th, Tim Bivins 
State House: 90th, Jerry Mitchell 
 

Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a thirty (30) year amortization 
schedule, with the first principal payment date to begin on May 1, 2012. Accrued interest on the unpaid 
balance hereof shall be paid annually, with the first interest payment date to begin on May 1, 2012 with the 
thirtieth and final payment of all outstanding balances due thirty years from the date of closing. 

 

 
 



 
 

March 8, 2011 

CONDUIT 
 
$133,000,000 
Methodist Medical Center of Illinois 

 

  REQUEST Purpose:  The proceeds will be used to (i) currently call Methodist Medical Center of Illinois 
(“Methodist”) Series 1998 fixed rate bonds; (ii) refinance a taxable line of credit used for 
hospital renovations; (iii) fund a portion of the swap termination costs associated with an 
outstanding fixed payor swap with a current notional value of $150,000,000; (iv) fund a debt 
service reserve fund, if applicable; and (v) pay certain Bond issuance costs. 
 
Program: Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds 

Extraordinary Conditions: None. 

BOARD ACTIONS Preliminary Bond Resolution 
 

MATERIAL CHANGES None.  This is the first time this project has been presented to the IFA Board. 

JOB DATA 2,168 Current jobs 0 New jobs projected    
  2,168 Retained jobs 0 Construction jobs projected    

DESCRIPTION • Location:  Peoria, Illinois (Peoria County) 
 
• Methodist, headquartered in Peoria, Illinois, is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation engaged 

in providing healthcare services to residents of Central Illinois.  Methodist operates a hospital 
with 318 staffed beds, a large medical group with 39 different locations, and a College of 
Nursing with over 500 students. 

CREDIT  
INDICATORS 

• Current rating A2 (Moody’s); may obtain additional rating(s).   
• Uninsured fixed rate bonds; uninsured variable rate demand bonds backed by Letter of Credit 

(PNC and US Bank) 
SECURITY • Secured by revenue pledge  
  
MATURITY • No later than 2041 

SOURCES AND USES 

Sources:   
IFA Fixed 
Rate Bonds $70,000,000  

Uses: 
 
Project Fund $111,200,000    

 IFA VRDBs $63,000,000 Cost of Issuance 1,800,000  
   Swap Termination  13,000,000  
   Debt Service Reserve Fund1 7,000,000  
 
 Total $133,000,000  Total $133,000,000   

RECOMMENDATION Credit Committee recommends approval. 

                                                 
1 If applicable 



Methodist Medical Center of Illinois      Preliminary Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 2   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
BOARD SUMMARY 

March 8, 2011 
 
Project:  Methodist Medical Center of Illinois 

STATISTICS 

Project Number:  H-HO-TE-CD-8456 Amount: $133,000,000 (Not-to-Exceed) 
Type:  501(c)(3) Bonds IFA Staff: Pam Lenane and Nora O’Brien 
Location:  Peoria County/ 
  Region:  Peoria County  

BOARD ACTION 

Preliminary Bond Resolution  
Conduit 501(c)(3) bonds No extraordinary conditions 
Credit Review Committee recommends approval. No IFA funds at risk 

VOTING RECORD 

This is the first time this project is being presented to the IFA Board. 

PURPOSE 

Bond proceeds will be used to (i) currently call Methodist Medical Center of Illinois Series 1998 fixed rate bonds; 
(ii) refinance a taxable line of credit used for hospital renovations; (iii) fund a portion of the swap termination costs 
associated with an outstanding fixed payor swap with a current notional value of $150,000,000; (iv) fund a debt 
service reserve fund, if applicable; and (v) pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the Bonds.  

IFA PROGRAM AND CONTRIBUTION 

501(c)(3) Bonds are a form of municipal bond financing that 501(c)(3) corporations can use to finance capital 
projects that will be used to further their charitable mission.  IFA’s issuance will convey federal income tax-exempt 
status on interest earned on the Bonds paid to bondholders, thereby reducing the Borrower’s interest expense.  
 

VOLUME CAP 

501(c)(3) Bonds do not require Volume Cap. 

 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

Sources: Uses: 
IFA Fixed Rate Bonds $70,000,000  Project Fund $111,200,000  
IFA VRDBs $63,000,000 Cost of Issuance 1,800,000 
  Swap Termination  13,000,000 
  Debt Service Reserve Fund1 7,000,000 
 
Total $133,000,000  Total $133,000,000  
 
1 If applicable  

JOBS 

Current employment: 2,168  Projected new jobs: 0  
Jobs retained: 2,168  Construction jobs: 0  



Methodist Medical Center of Illinois      Preliminary Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 3   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 
 
 

 

FINANCING SUMMARY/STRUCTURE 

Security:   The Bonds are expected to be secured by Master Trust Indenture that includes a pledge of 
gross revenues. 

 
Structure:  The plan of finance contemplates the issuance of (i) traditional fixed rate bonds (sold 

based on Methodist’s underlying rating) and (ii) variable rate demand bonds secured by a 
bank-issued letter of credit (by PNC and US Bank). 

 
Interest Rate: To be determined the day at pricing for the Fixed Rate Bonds and by prevailing market 

rates at reset for the Variable Rate Bonds. 
 
Interest Modes:  It is anticipated that both (i) Fixed Rate Bonds and (ii) LOC-secured Variable Bonds  
   will be sold based on the structure noted above. 
 
Current Rating:   The Fixed Rate Bonds will be rated A2 Stable (Moody’s); may obtain additional 

rating(s).  The Variable Rate Bonds will carry the rating of the LOC provider. 
 
Maturity:   2041 (30 Years) 
 
Estimated Closing Date:  May 15, 2011 

PROJECT SUMMARY (FOR PRELIMINARY BOND RESOLUTION) 

The proceeds will be used to (i) currently call Methodist Medical Center of Illinois Series 1998 fixed rate bonds; (ii) 
refinance a taxable line of credit used for hospital renovations; (iii) fund a portion of the swap termination costs 
associated with an outstanding fixed payor swap with a current national value of $150,000,000; (iv) fund a debt 
service reserve fund, if applicable; and (v) pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the Bonds. 

BUSINESS SUMMARY 

Methodist Medical Center of Illinois is a tax-exempt 501(c)(3) Illinois corporation that provides inpatient, 
outpatient, ambulatory, emergency care, non-acute and professional services for residents of Peoria and 22 
surrounding counties.   

Methodist Medical Center of Illinois consists of three primary operating units: 

Hospital:  The hospital division consists of the traditional acute and sub-acute care services.  The Hospital’s total 
bed complement as of December 31, 2010 is 318 staffed beds (including nursery). 

Methodist Medical Group:  Methodist Medical Group (“MMG”) provides primary and specialty care professional 
services to residents of Peoria and the surrounding area.  MMG consists of 34 primary and specialty care physician 
practices; two in-school health programs, which serve multiple schools in both Peoria and Pekin; and a family 
practice residency program.   

Methodist College of Nursing:  The College of Nursing offers an accredited baccalaureate degree program in 
nursing.  The College currently has over 500 full-time and part-time students enrolled.  



Methodist Medical Center of Illinois      Preliminary Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 4   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 
 

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

Applicant:  Methodist Medical Center of Illinois 
   221 Northeast Glen Oak Avenue 
   Peoria, IL  61636-0002 
 
Website:   www.mymethodist.net 
 
Project name:  Methodist Medical Center (IFA Series 2011 Bonds) 
 
Organization:    501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit Corporation 
 
State:   Illinois 
 
Board Members:  Methodist Health Services Corporation (Parent) Board members: 
 
 Karen Stumpe, Chairperson 
 Joseph Henderson, Vice - Chairperson 
 Michael Bryant  
 Steve Graham 
 Lee Graves 
 Peter Johnsen  
 Joseph O’Neill 
 Michael Landwirth  
 Mark Petersen  
 James Richmond 
 Michael Stone  
 Donald White 

 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 

Borrower’s Counsel:  McDermott, Will & Emery Chicago Dean Kant 
Bond Counsel: Jones Day Chicago Richard Tomei,  
     Mary Kimura 
Underwriter: Morgan Stanley Chicago Brett Tande 
Underwriter’s Counsel: To be determined  
Financial Advisor: Ponder and Co. Chicago, IL Michael Tym 
LOC Bank: PNC Bank / US Bank  
Bank’s Counsel: To be determined   
IFA Counsel: To be determined    
IFA Financial Advisor: Acacia Financial Group, LLC Chicago Courtney Shea 
 

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS 

 
Congressional: 18  Aaron Schock 
State Senate: 16  David Koehler 
State House: 73  David Leitch 
 

http://www.mymethodist.net/


Methodist Medical Center of Illinois      Preliminary Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 5   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 
 

SERVICE AREA 
 
The primary service area includes Peoria, and three surrounding counties.  The secondary service area includes an 
additional 19 counties. 
 



 
 

March 8, 2011 

CONDUIT 
 
$35,000,000   
Roseland Community Hospital 

 
REQUEST Purpose:  Bond proceeds from the sale of the Series 2011 Bonds together with other funds will 

be used to (i) refund existing debt of Roseland Community Hospital (the “Hospital” or 
“RCH”), (ii) pay or reimburse the Hospital for the payment of the costs of acquiring, 
constructing, renovating and equipping the Hospital’s health care facilities, including renovation 
of administrative, labor and delivery, cardiopulmonary, radiology and intensive care units, a 
second and third floor expansion to include a surgery suite and shelled space, and construction 
and equipping of an adolescent behavioral center at its facilities located in Chicago (the 
“Project”) and (iii) to pay cost of issuance on the Bonds. 
 
Program: Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds 

Extraordinary Conditions: None. 
BOARD ACTIONS Final Bond Resolution 

 
MATERIAL 
CHANGES 

Voting Record for November 9, 2010:  11 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions, 4 absent (Bronner, 
DeNard, Fuentes, Herrin), 0 vacancies. 

JOB DATA 539 Current jobs 12 New jobs projected 
  539 Retained jobs 20 Construction jobs projected 

DESCRIPTION ● Chicago (Cook County/Northeast Region) 
 

 Roseland Community Hospital, located on Chicago's far South Side, was established over 80 
years ago, and remains a constant presence in the community. 
 
RCH is a 162 bed, private, non-profit community hospital dedicated to providing a full range of 
health care services, including medical and surgical care in both inpatient and outpatient settings.  
Staffed with dedicated physicians, nurses, health care professionals, and support staff, RCH 
remains steadfast in its commitment to the community it serves.  
 

CREDIT 
INDICATORS 

● RCH is not currently rated 
● No credit enhancement 

SECURITY ● Secured by a security interest in the Pledged Revenues of the Obligated Group and any future 
Members of the Obligated Group and by a Mortgage and Parking Security Agreement including a 
Master Mortgage on the hospital site and associated parking, subject only to Permitted 
Encumbrances. 

 ● No rating (Bonds to be purchased directly by institutional investors through a Limited Public 
Offering)   

MATURITY ● No later than 2041 
SOURCES AND USES Sources of Funds  Uses of Funds  
 IFA Bonds $35,000,000 Project Fund $26,416,000 
 Equity 

Contribution 
 

400,000 
Debt Service Reserve 
Fund 

 
3,190,000 

   Payoff of Existing 
Loan 

 
4,694,000 

   Cost of Issuance 1,100,000 
 
 

Total  $35,400,000 Total  $35,400,000 

RECOMMENDATION Credit Review Committee recommends approval. 



Roseland Community Hospital      Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 2   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
BOARD SUMMARY 

March 8, 2011 
 
Project:  Roseland Community Hospital 

STATISTICS 

Project Number: H-HO-TE-CD-8412 Amount: $35,000,000 (not-to-exceed amount) 
Type:  501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds IFA Staff: Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
Location:   Chicago County/ 
  Region: Cook/Northeast  

BOARD ACTION 

Final Bond Resolution  
Conduit 501(c)(3) Bonds No IFA funds at risk 
Credit Review Committee recommends approval. No extraordinary conditions 

VOTING RECORD 

Voting Record for November 9, 2010:  11 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions, 4 absent (Bronner, DeNard, Fuentes, Herrin), 0 
vacancies. 

PURPOSE 

Bond proceeds, combined with other funds will be used to (i) refund existing debt of the Hospital, (ii) pay or reimburse the 
Hospital for the payment of the costs of acquiring, constructing, renovating and equipping the Hospital’s health care 
facilities, including renovation of administrative, labor and delivery, cardiopulmonary, radiology and intensive care units, a 
second and third floor expansion to include a surgery suite and shelled space, and construction and equipping of an 
adolescent behavioral center, and (iii) pay cost of issuance of the Bonds. 

IFA PROGRAM AND CONTRIBUTION 

501(c)(3) Bonds are a form of municipal bond financing that 501(c)(3) corporations can use to finance capital projects that 
will be used to further their charitable mission.  IFA’s issuance will convey federal income tax-exempt status on interest 
earned on the Bonds paid to bondholders, thereby reducing the Borrower’s interest expense.  

VOLUME CAP 

501(c)(3) Bonds do not require Volume Cap. 

ESTIMATED SOUCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

Sources: IFA Bonds         $35,000,000 Uses:   Project Fund $26,416,000 
 Equity Contribution 400,000       Debt Service Reserve Fund 3,190,000 
         Pay off of Existing Loan 4,694,000 
                    Issuance Costs  1,100,000 
  Total                $35,400,000 Total                       $35,400,000 

JOBS 

Current employment:   539  Projected new jobs: 12 
Jobs retained:               539  Construction jobs: 20 



Roseland Community Hospital      Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 3   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 
 

FINANCING SUMMARY/STRUCTURE 

Security:   Secured by a security interest in the Pledged Revenues of the Obligated Group and any future Members of 
the Obligated Group and will also be secured by a Mortgage and Security Agreement including Master 
Mortgage on the hospital site and associated parking, subject only to Permitted Encumbrances. 

 
Structure:  The current plan of finance anticipates uninsured fixed rate bonds offered through a Limited Public 

Offering to institutional investors.   
 
Interest Rate:  To be determined based on MMD rates and credit spreads at the time of pricing.   
 
Interest Mode:  Fixed Rate Bonds 
 
Rating:   None 
 
Maturity:  2041 (30 Years) 
 
Estimated  
Closing Date:  April 13, 2011 

PROJECT SUMMARY (FOR FINAL BOND RESOLUTION) 

To (i) refund existing debt of the Hospital, (ii) pay or reimburse the Hospital for the payment of the costs of acquiring, 
constructing, renovating and equipping the Hospital’s health care facilities, including renovation of administrative, labor and 
delivery, cardiopulmonary, radiology and intensive care units, a second and third floor expansion to include a surgery suite 
and shelled space, and construction and equipping of an adolescent behavioral center and (iii) pay costs of issuance of the 
Bonds. 

BUSINESS SUMMARY 

Roseland Community Hospital, located on Chicago's far South Side, was established over 80 years ago. 
 
RCH is a 162-bed, private, non-profit community hospital dedicated to providing a full range of health care services, 
including medical and surgical care in both inpatient and outpatient settings.  Staffed with dedicated physicians, nurses, 
health care professionals, and support staff, RCH remains steadfast in its commitment to the community it serves.  
 
As a community-based hospital, RCH is committed to providing quality care to every patient.  Their new state-of-the-art 
emergency department is an example of their commitment to bringing high quality care to the Roseland community. The 
Hospital also has a Foundation which has been organized to raise and distribute funds exclusively for the purpose of 
advancing the mission of Roseland Community Hospital.  

Inpatient Services 

Roseland Community Hospital provides a full range of inpatient services to meet the evolving needs of the community.  
Inpatient services include, medical/surgical unit, level II nursery, obstetrics unit, telemetry unit detoxification services, 
pediatric unit, intensive care unit and social services. 

RCH’s professional, qualified staff is dedicated to excellence in clinical care and service, and devoted to serving the 
individual needs of each patient. 



Roseland Community Hospital      Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 4   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 
Outpatient Services 

Roseland Community Hospital provides a full range of outpatient services to meet the evolving needs of the community.  

Outpatient services include a comprehensive emergency department, urgent care services, outpatient and day surgery 
programs, physical therapy, hyperbaric facility, expanded cardiology outpatient services, on-site physician offices and 
cardiopulmonary services. 

OWNERSHIP / ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

Project name:  Roseland Community Hospital Project    
 
Applicant:  Roseland Community Hospital 
   45 West 111th Street 
   Chicago, IL  60628-4200 
 
Contact:   Earmon Irons, Chief Executive Officer, 773.995.3012, eirons@roselandhospital.org 
 
Website:   www.roselandhospital.org 
 
Ownership (501(c)(3)):   501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit Corporation 
 
State:   Illinois 
 
Board Members:  Dian Powell 
   Tunji Ladipo 
   Earmon Irons 
   Salim Al Nurridin 
   Shirley Pickett  
   Larry Mitchell 
   Alan Jackson 
   Craig Washington 
   Almeda Dunn 
   Catherine Nichols 
   Genivee Chapman 
   Ron Blackstone    

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 

Borrower’s Counsel:  Cullinane Law Firm St. Louis, MO John C. Derico 
Bond Counsel: Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP Chicago, IL Elizabeth Weber 
Underwriter: Raymond James & Associates Chicago, IL Richard Bratton 
    Natalie Wabich 
Co-Manager: Grigsby & Associates, Inc. Chicago, IL Wayne Pierce 
Underwriter’s Counsel: Foley & Lardner Chicago, IL Heidi Jeffery 
IFA Counsel: Neal & Leroy  Chicago, IL Anne Fredd 
IFA  Financial Advisor: Scott Balice Strategies  Chicago, IL Lois Scott 
 

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS 
 
Congressional:   2 Jesse L. Jackson, Jr.  
State Senate: 14 Emil Jones, III 
State House: 28 Robert “Bob” Rita 
 

mailto:eirons@roselandhospital.org


Roseland Community Hospital      Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 5   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 
 

SERVICE AREA – ROSELAND COMMUNITY HOSPITAL 

 
 

 
Figure 1, Source: Microsoft MapPoint 



 
 

March 8, 2011 

CONDUIT 
 
$45,000,000  
Sarah Bush Lincoln Health System 

 
REQUEST Purpose:  Bond proceeds from the sale of the Series 2011 Bonds together with other funds, will 

be used to enable Sarah Bush Lincoln Health System (“SBLHS”, the “Health Center”, or the 
“Borrower”) to (i) refinance existing Illinois Health Facilities Authority Bonds Series 1996  
and Series 1996B, (ii) finance project costs to expand and renovate the Hospital in Mattoon and 
to undertake capital expenditures at the Borrower’s other properties, (iii) finance a debt service 
reserve fund and (iv) pay cost of issuance on the Bonds. 
 
Program: Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds 

Extraordinary Conditions: None. 
BOARD ACTIONS Final Bond Resolution  

 
MATERIAL CHANGES Structure finalized as Direct Bank Purchase.  Voting Record for November 9, 2010:  11 ayes, 0 

nays, 0 abstentions, 4 absent (Bronner, DeNard, Fuentes, Herrin), 0 vacancies.  

JOB DATA 1,650 Current jobs 17 New jobs projected    
  1,650 Retained jobs 60 Construction jobs projected    

DESCRIPTION ● Mattoon (Coles County) 
 
● SBLHS has a total of 1,650 employees (1,250 FTE’s) providing a full range of acute care 
services to residents of Coles County and the surrounding six counties.  SBLHS serves a seven 
county region in East Central Illinois, encompassing a drawing population of approximately 
156,000 people.  The SBLHS medical staff includes physicians in 28 specialty areas and 
approximately 145 physicians with hospital privileges at Sarah Bush Lincoln Health Center.  
The Physician System Practices of SBLHS include approximately 57 employed physicians and 
25 mid-level providers. 
 

CREDIT INDICATORS ● Underlying rating of A+ (S&P) 
● Bank private placement with JP Morgan Chase Bank 

SECURITY ● Secured by gross revenue pledge and a negative pledge on assets 
  
MATURITY ● No later than 2026 

SOURCES AND USES 

 
Sources: 
IFA Bonds $45,000,000  

Uses: 
Refunding account $23,560,000    

 1996 DSRF $ 6,710,000 Project Account 27,650,000  
   Cost of Issuance 500,000  
 
 Total $51,710,000  Total $51,710,000   
RECOMMENDATION Credit Review Committee recommends approval. 



Sarah Bush Lincoln Health System     Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 2   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
BOARD SUMMARY 

March 8, 2011 
 
Project:  Sarah Bush Lincoln Health System 

STATISTICS 

Project Number:  H-HO-TE-CD-8416 Amount: $45,000,000 (Not-to-Exceed) 
Type:  501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds IFA Staff: Pam Lenane and Nora O’Brien 
Location:   Mattoon County/ 
  Region:  Coles County / Southeastern 

BOARD ACTION 

Final Bond Resolution  
Conduit 501 (c)(3) Bonds No IFA funds at risk 
Credit Review Committee recommends approval. No extraordinary conditions 

VOTING RECORD 

Voting Record for November 9, 2010: 11 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions, 4 absent (Bronner, DeNard, Fuentes, Herrin), 
0 vacancies.  

PURPOSE 

Bond proceeds will be used to (i) refinance existing Illinois Health Facilities Authority Bonds Series 1996 and 
Series 1996B, (ii) finance project costs to expand and renovate the Hospital and properties owned by the SBLHS 
and other capital expenditures, (iii) finance a debt service reserve fund and (iv) pay cost of issuance on the Bonds. 
 

IFA PROGRAM AND CONTRIBUTION 

501(c)(3) Bonds are a form of municipal bond financing that 501(c)(3) corporations can use to finance capital 
projects that will be used to further their charitable mission.  IFA’s issuance will convey federal income tax-exempt 
status on interest earned on the Bonds paid to bondholders, thereby reducing the Borrower’s interest expense.  

VOLUME CAP 

501(c)(3) Bonds do not require Volume Cap. 

JOBS 

Current employment:   1,650 Projected new jobs: 17 
Jobs retained:               1,650 Construction jobs: 60 

ESTIMATED SOUCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

Sources: IFA Bonds         $45,000,000 Uses:   Project Fund $27,650,000 
 Series 1996 DSRF 6,710,000         Refunding Account 23,560,000  
    Issuance Costs  500,000 
   
 Total                $51,710,000 Total                      $51,710,000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sarah Bush Lincoln Health System     Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 3   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 
 

FINANCING SUMMARY/STRUCTURE 

Security:   The IFA Series 2011 Bonds will be secured by Master Trust Indenture that includes a 
pledge of gross revenues and a negative pledge on assets. 

 
Structure:  Bank direct purchase (by JPMorgan Chase Bank).  The Bonds will be non-rated. 
 
Interest Rate:  Not to exceed 6% 
 
Interest Mode:   Fixed for 7 to 10 years (with scheduled interest rate resets to maturity) 
 
Underlying  
Borrower Rating:   Although the subject Bonds will not be rated (due to the bank direct purchase structure), 

the Borrower currently has a direct underlying rating of A+ by Standard and Poor’s. 
 
Maturity:   2026 (15 Years) 
 
Estimated Closing Date:  March 10, 2011 

PROJECT SUMMARY (FOR FINAL BOND RESOLUTION) 

The proceeds of the IFA Series 2011 Bonds will be combined with other funds and used to (i) refinance existing 
Illinois Health Facilities Authority Bonds Series 1996 and Series 1996B, (ii) finance project costs to expand and 
renovate the Hospital and properties owned by the SBLHS and other capital expenditures in Mattoon and elsewhere 
in its service area, (iii) finance a debt service reserve fund and (iv) pay cost of issuance on the Bonds. 
 
 

BUSINESS SUMMARY 
 
Sarah Bush Lincoln Health System (“SBLHS”) is centrally located between Mattoon and Charleston, Illinois, 
which are East Central Illinois communities located approximately 180 miles south of Chicago.  The Health Center's 
primary service area consists of Coles County, Illinois.  The Health Center's secondary service area consists of the 
six counties surrounding Coles County, which are Clark, Cumberland, Moultrie, Douglas, Shelby and Edgar 
counties.  The tertiary service area consists of three additional counties, Effingham, Jasper and Crawford counties.   
The Health Center's entire service area is located within a 45-mile radius of the Health Center.   
 
SBLHS has a total of 1,650 employees (1,250 FTE’s) providing a full range of acute care services to residents of 
Coles County and the surrounding six counties.  The SBLHS medical staff includes physicians in 28 specialty areas 
and approximately 145 physicians with hospital privileges at Sarah Bush Lincoln Health Center.  The Physician 
System Practices of SBLHS include approximately 57 employed physicians and 25 mid-level providers. 
 
The main health center facility was completed in 1977 as a four-story facility with a partial basement, consisting of 
200,000 gross square feet (the “Main Health Center Facility”).  The Health Center is licensed for 128 beds.  Services 
currently located and provided in this facility include:  Obstetrics/Gynecology, Level II Nursery, Pediatrics, Medical 
and Surgical Nursing Units, Operating Rooms, Outpatient Surgery Center, Emergency Department, Ambulatory 
Care Unit, Behavioral Health Services, Laboratory, Radiology, Physical and Occupational Services, Speech & 
Audiology Services, Cardiac Rehabilitation, Respiratory Therapy, Outpatient Pharmacy, Sleep Studies, Cancer 
Center, Cardiac Cath Lab, Illinois Breast and Cervical Cancer Center, Home Health and Hospice services. 
 
The 82 employed physicians and mid-level providers service 21 clinics on the main campus plus clinics in the towns 
of Arcola, Arthur, Casey, Charleston, Mattoon, Neoga, Sullivan and Toledo, Illinois. 
 
A Certificate of Need was not required for the subject projects.   



Sarah Bush Lincoln Health System     Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 4   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 
 

OWNERSHIP / ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

Project name:  SBLHS Advance Refunding, New Construction and Project Reimbursement 
    
Applicant:  Sarah Bush Lincoln Health System 
   1000 Health Center Drive 
   Mattoon (Coles County), IL  61938-9253 
 
Contact:   Craig Sheagren, Vice President – Finance, 217.258.2513, CSheagren@sblhs.org 
 
Website:   www.sarahbush.org 
    
Organization:    501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit Corporation 
 
State:   Illinois 
 
Board Members:   

 
Health Center Board Members 

 

Steve Honselman - Chairperson Linda Hance 
Scott Lensink - Vice-Chair Kiran Joag, M.D. 
Gary Mikel, M.D. - Secretary Larry Lilly 
Ann Bacon – Treasurer Timothy Mooney 
Chris Considine William Perry, Ph.D. 
Jeanne Dau Aldo Ruffolo, D.O. 
Mark Donnell Steve Wente 

 
  

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 

Borrower’s Counsel:  Hinshaw & Culbertson Chicago, IL Leslie Richards-Yellen 
Financial Advisor: Ponder & Co. Chicago, IL 
   Valparaiso, IN Michael Tym 
Bond Counsel: Jones Day Chicago, IL Daniel Bacastow 
Bank: JP Morgan Chase Chicago, IL Tim Ruby    
Bank’s Counsel: Foley & Lardner  Chicago, IL Laura Bilas 
Master Trustee: First Mid-Illinois Bank Mattoon, IL Gary Kuhns 
Bond Trustee: Amalgamated Bank Chicago, IL Remonia Jamison 
Bond Trustee Counsel: Amalgamated Bank Chicago, IL Cherie Duve    
Issuer’s Counsel: Sanchez Daniels & Hoffman  Chicago, IL John Cummins 
Issuer’s Advisor: Scott Balice Strategies  Chicago, IL Lois Scott 
 

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS 
 
Congressional:   15  Tim Johnson 
State Senate:   55  Dale Righter 
State House: 110  Chapin Rose 
 

http://www.sarahbush.org/


Sarah Bush Lincoln Health System     Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 5   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 
 

SERVICE AREA 

 



 
 

 
March 8, 2011 

 CONDUIT 
 
 
$400,000,000  
The Carle Foundation 

 
REQUEST Purpose:  The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2011 Bonds, together with other monies 

provided by The Carle Foundation (the “Corporation”) will be used to:  (i) potentially 
refinance existing taxable debt; (ii) pay or reimburse the Corporation and/or the other tax-
exempt affiliates of Carle for, the payment of the costs of acquiring, constructing, renovating, 
remodeling and equipping certain of their health facilities, including, but not limited to, 
acquiring, constructing and equipping an approximately 360,000 square foot, nine story heart 
and vascular institute consisting of approximately 136 beds located at its campus in Urbana, 
Illinois (collectively, the “Project”) (also, see Project Summary Section); (iii) pay a portion of 
the interest on the Series 2011 Bonds, if applicable; (iv) fund a debt service reserve fund, if 
applicable; (v) provide working capital, if deemed necessary, and (vi) pay certain expenses 
incurred in connection with the issuance of the Series 2011 Bonds. 
 
Program: Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds 

Extraordinary Conditions: None. 
BOARD ACTIONS Final Bond Resolution  

MATERIAL CHANGES Voting Record for February 8, 2011:  8 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions, 7 absent (DeNard, Durburg, 
Herrin, Leonard, McInerney, Parish, Poole), 0 vacancies. 

  
JOB DATA 4,900 Current jobs 0 New jobs projected    
  4,900 Retained jobs 275 Construction jobs projected    

DESCRIPTION ● Location:  Urbana (Champaign County/East Central Region) 
 

 ● The Carle Foundation, headquartered in Urbana, Illinois, is an Illinois not-for-profit 
corporation engaged in providing health care services to residents of East Central Illinois. 
 

CREDIT INDICATORS ● AA-/AA- from Standard & Poor’s/Fitch  
● Any variable rate demand bonds issued will be uninsured and backed by either (i) a Standby 
Bond Purchase Agreement or (ii) a Letter of Credit (the prospective Liquidity or LOC Bank(s) 
are to be determined, but will carry a long-term rating of A- or better).  Any fixed rate bonds 
will carry the underlying rating of The Carle Foundation as successor to The Carle Foundation 
Obligated Group.  

SECURITY ● The Bonds are expected to be secured by an obligation of The Carle Foundation under a 
Master Trust Indenture.  Such obligation will include a pledge of revenues and may or may 
not include a debt service reserve fund or mortgages. 

MATURITY ● Not more than 40 years. 
      

SOURCES AND USES Sources:  Uses:   

 IFA Bonds $400,000,000 
Project Fund/Capitalized 
interest $301,000,000    

   Debt Service Reserve Fund 40,000,000  
   Refinancing 55,000,000  
   Costs of Issuance 4,000,000  
 
 Total $400,000,000  Total $400,000,000  
RECOMMENDATION Credit Committee recommends approval. 

 
 



The Carle Foundation      Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 2   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 

 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

BOARD SUMMARY 
March 8, 2011 

 
Project:  The Carle Foundation 

STATISTICS 

Project Number:  H-HO-TE-CD-8450 Amount: $400,000,000 (not-to-exceed) 
Type:  501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds IFA Staff: Pam Lenane and Nora O’Brien 
Location:   Urbana County/ 
  Region:  Champaign/East Central 

BOARD ACTION 

Final Bond Resolution  
Conduit 501(c)(3) Bonds No IFA funds at risk 
Credit Review Committee recommends approval. No extraordinary conditions 

VOTING RECORD 

Voting Record for February 8, 2011:  8 ayes, 0 nays, 0 abstentions, 7 absent (DeNard, Durburg, Herrin, Leonard, 
McInerney, Parish, Poole), 0 vacancies.   

PURPOSE 

The proceeds from the sale of the Series 2011 Bonds, together with other monies available to the Corporation, will 
be used to:  (i) potentially refinance existing taxable debt; (ii) pay or reimburse Carle and/or the other tax-exempt 
affiliates of Carle for, the payment of the costs of acquiring, constructing, renovating, remodeling and equipping 
certain of their health facilities, including, but not limited to, acquiring, constructing and equipping an 
approximately 360,000 square foot, nine story heart and vascular institute consisting of approximately 136 beds 
located at its Urbana campus; (iii) pay a portion of the interest on the Series 2011 Bonds, if applicable; (iv) fund a 
debt service reserve fund, if applicable; (v) provide working capital, if deemed necessary, and (vi) pay certain 
expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Series 2011 Bonds. 

IFA PROGRAM AND CONTRIBUTION 

501(c)(3) Bonds are a form of municipal bond financing that 501(c)(3) corporations can use to finance capital 
projects that will be used to further their charitable mission.  IFA’s issuance will convey federal income tax-exempt 
status on interest earned on the Bonds paid to bondholders, thereby reducing the Borrower’s interest expense.  

VOLUME CAP 

501(c)(3) Bonds do not require Volume Cap. 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

Sources: IFA Bonds         $400,000,000 Uses:   Project Fund/Capitalized interest $301,000,000 
    Debt Service Reserve Fund 40,000,000 
    Refinancing 55,000,000   
                    Costs of Issuance  4,000,000 
  Total                $400,000,000 Total                       $400,000,000 

JOBS 

Current employment:              4,900 Projected new jobs:              0 
Jobs retained:                          4,900 Construction jobs:          275 



The Carle Foundation      Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 3   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 
 

FINANCING SUMMARY 

Security:   The Bonds are expected to be secured by an obligation of The Carle Foundation under a 
Master Trust Indenture.  Such obligation will include a pledge of revenues and may or 
may not include a debt service reserve fund or mortgages. 

 
Structure:   The plan of finance may include the issuance of both fixed rate and variable rate bonds, 

to be determined based on market conditions. 
 
Interest Rate:  To be determined at the time of pricing based upon market conditions.   
 
Interest Rate Modes:   Floating rate obligations for which interest rate is established periodically and paid 

monthly; fixed rate bonds on which interest is paid semiannually.  Carle may consider 
issuance of additional variable rate alternatives. 

 
Underlying Ratings:   “AA-”/“AA-” from Standard & Poor’s/Fitch 
 
Maturity:   2051 (Up to 40 Years) 
 
Estimated Closing Date:  April, 2011 

PROJECT SUMMARY (FOR FINAL BOND RESOLUTION) 

The Corporation proposes to expand and modernize its current hospital facility by constructing a 350,027 gross 
square foot (“GSF”) bed tower and modernizing 10,000 gross square feet of existing facilities.    The budget for this 
project is $218 million with supplemental funds not provided through the Series 2011 Bonds being provided by The 
Carle Foundation. 
 
In addition to the Tower project, proceeds from the Series 2011 Bonds will be used to refinance the Foundation’s 
outstanding bridge loan, and outstanding notes related to mortgages on two of its facilities.  Remaining Bond 
proceeds will reimburse Carle for previous capital expenditures, fund capitalized interest and working capital related 
to the new money projects, potentially fund a debt service reserve fund, and fund costs associated with the Series 
2011 Bonds.  
 
Timing (approximate): It is expected site work will begin in January 2011 and continue through August 2011; 
construction will commence in July 2011 and continue through June 2013; and start-up and IDPH inspection and 
certification will occur between July 2013 and September 2013. 
 
The Carle Foundation Hospital submitted a Certificate of Need (“CON”) application to the Illinois Health Facilities 
Planning Board (“Planning Board”) on February 29, 2008.  On August 12, 2008, the Planning Board approved the 
CON. 

BUSINESS SUMMARY 

The Carle Foundation Hospital (“Hospital”) is a subsidiary of The Carle Foundation and is a 501(c)(3) 
corporation established under Illinois law. 
 
The Foundation serves as the sole member and elects all of the trustees of, and thereby controls, the following 
Illinois not-for-profit organizations and affiliates: 
 

a. The Carle Foundation Hospital operates a licensed 325-bed hospital, a certified home health agency, and a 
certified hospice, all which lease property and equipment from the Foundation. The Hospital also operates 
Rx Express, a multi-outlet retail pharmacy operation; Carle Medical Supply, a provider of medical 
equipment and supplies to the general public and hospital patients; the Danville Surgery Center and 
outpatient surgical recovery centers which are located in Champaign and Danville, Illinois; and Carle Risk 
Management Company which provides insurance claims processing and management services to the 
Foundation.  



The Carle Foundation      Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 4   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 

 
b. Carle Health Care, Incorporated operates Carle Arrow Ambulance and Airlife, an ambulance and an air 

medical transport service; The Caring Place, a day care center; and Carle Foundation Physician Services, 
LLC, which operates physician practices. Effective April 1, 2010, the clinical physician practices which 
were formerly operated by Carle Clinic Association., P.C. began to provide services through Carle 
Physician Group, a new division of Carle Health Care, Inc.  
 
Carle Health Care, Inc. also operates the Champaign SurgiCenter, LLC, a free-standing ambulatory surgery 
center located in Champaign, Illinois. Until April 1, 2010, it was owned 51% by Carle Health Care, Inc. 
and 49% by Carle Clinic Association, P.C. Due to the ownership changes noted above, the Foundation now 
owns 100% of the SurgiCenter.  
 

c. Carle Retirement Centers, Inc. (Windsor) operates a 174-unit retirement living center located in Savoy, 
Illinois.  
 

d. The Carle Development Foundation is engaged in fund-raising activities and also manages all activity 
relating to restricted and unrestricted contributions. In addition, it is the sole owner of Carle Community 
Health Corporation, which is engaged in funding charitable, scientific and educational community-based 
health care initiatives. 

 
The Foundation serves as the sole stockholder and elects all the directors of, and thereby controls, the following for-
profit affiliates: 
 

a. Health Systems Insurance, Limited, an off-shore captive insurance company was established to underwrite 
the general and professional liability risks of the Foundation and, until April 1, 2010, those of Carle Clinic 
Association, P.C. and its subsidiaries and affiliates. 

 
b. Carle Holding Company, Inc. is the sole owner of Health Alliance Medical Plans and its subsidiaries 

(“Health Alliance”) which is a licensed life, accident, and health insurance company in the State of Illinois 
regulated by the Illinois Department of Insurance (DOI). Health Alliance was granted a certificate of 
authority to transact business as a health maintenance organization (HMO) on November 28, 1989. Health 
Alliance had approximately 318,000 members at June 30, 2010. 
 
Health Alliance has the following wholly-owned subsidiaries, Health Alliance-Midwest, Inc. which is 
incorporated as a licensed HMO to write health insurance policies in the states of Illinois and Iowa and 
Health Care Horizons, Inc. (HCH), which was acquired by Health Alliance on July 1, 2008. HCH’s principal 
business is to provide support to its wholly-owned subsidiaries which act as third-party administrators for its 
client’s health plans. 

 
The Carle Health Care System consists of The Carle Foundation and its affiliates, all of which are either controlled 
by or all of the outstanding stock of which is owned directly or indirectly by the Corporation.  The Carle Health 
Care System functions as a vertically integrated provider of a broad spectrum of inpatient, outpatient, and long-term 
health care services to a large and predominantly rural service area in East Central Illinois and West Central Indiana 
surrounding the cities of Champaign and Urbana, Illinois.  
 
On April 1, 2010, the Foundation acquired Carle Clinic Association, P.C. and its subsidiaries and affiliates 
(“Clinic”) which includes Health Alliance Medical Plans, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Health Alliance), a wholly owned 
subsidiary of the Clinic.  The Clinic operated as a private, multi-specialty, group medical practice comprised of 
approximately 330 physicians and surgeons who have medical practices in the Clinic.  In addition to the group 
medical practice, the Clinic also wholly owned Health Alliance, a licensed life, accident and health insurance 
company in the State of Illinois.  After the purchase, substantially all of the assets and operations of the Clinic were 
transferred to various Foundation affiliates, while the Clinic retained certain liabilities and their ownership interest 
in the operations of Health Alliance. The Clinic also converted from a Professional corporation to a Limited 
Liability Company (LLC) and changed its name to Carle Holding Company, Inc. (“CHC”) which merged into the 
Corporation.  The acquisition has significant impact on the Corporation’s scope of operations. 
 
 



The Carle Foundation      Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 5   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 
 
Upon issuance of the Series 2011 Bonds, the Corporation and its affiliates (The Carle Foundation Hospital, Carle 
Health Care, Incorporated, and Carle Retirement Centers, Inc.) will be the Obligated Group.  Each Member of the 
Obligated Group is jointly and severally liable on each obligation now or hereafter issued and outstanding under the 
Master Indenture, and pursuant to the Master Indenture each Member of the Obligated Group pledges its 
unrestricted receivables to secure payment of the Obligations.  Each of the Corporation, The Carle Foundation 
Hospital, Carle Health Care Incorporated, and Carle Retirement Centers, Inc. is an Illinois not for profit corporation 
and is exempt from federal taxation. 

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

Applicant:  The Carle Foundation 
   611 W. Park St. 

Urbana (Champaign County), IL  
61801-2595 

 
Contact:   Scott Hendrie, Director – Treasury, 217.383.4369, scott.hendrie@carle.com 
 
Website:   www.carle.com 
 
Project name:   The Carle Foundation (IFA Series 2011 Bonds) 
 
Organization:    501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit Corporation 
 
State:   Illinois 
 
Board Membership: Kenneth Aronson, M.D. 

Phil Blankenburg 
Matthew Gibb, M.D. 
Donna Greene 
Thomas E. Harrington, Jr. 

   Jane Hays 
David Ikenberry 

   James C. Leonard, M.D. 
E. Phillips Knox 
J. Michael Martin 

   Cora E. Musial, M.D. 
Martin K. Smith, Chairman 
Rick Stephens 
Paul Tender, M.D. 
George Timmons 
R. Bruce Wellman, M.D. 

mailto:scott.hendrie@carle.com
http://www.carle.com/


The Carle Foundation      Final Bond Resolution 
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds   March 8, 2011 
Page 6   Pam Lenane & Nora O’Brien 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 

Borrower’s Counsel:  McGuire Woods Chicago Kevin Dougherty 
    Kevin Downes 
Auditor: McGladrey and Pullen Champaign Jon Trupin 
    Randy Ragan 
Financial Advisor: Ponder & Co. Chicago Jennifer Brown 
    Terrence Shirey 
Bond Counsel: Jones Day Chicago David Kates 
    Valerie Pearsall 
Underwriters: Barclays Capital Los Angeles, CA James Kim 
 Goldman Sachs New York, NY Rondy Jennings 
Underwriter’s Counsel: Orrick Herrington Sacramento, CA John Myers 
Credit Enhancement/ 
  Standby Purchaser: To be determined (only applicable if variable rate bonds are issued) 
Counsel to Credit Enhancer/ 
  Standby Bond Purchaser: To be determined (only applicable if variable rate bonds are issued) 
Architect: To be determined 
General Contractor: To be determined 
IFA Counsel: Miller Canfield  Chicago Paul Durbin 
IFA’s Financial Advisor: Acacia Financial Group  Chicago Courtney Shea 
 

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS 
 
Congressional:   15  Timothy V. Johnson 
State Senate:   52  Michael W. Frerichs 
State House:  103  Naomi D. Jakobsson 

SERVICE AREA 

The primary service area includes Champaign County and selected zip codes in east-central Illinois.  The secondary 
service area includes Vermilion County and selected zip codes from 38 other counties in east-central Illinois and 
west-central Indiana.  Based on zip codes of patient origin, 47.5% of total hospital inpatient admissions in the 
primary service area were to Carle, while 13.7% of total hospital inpatient admissions in the combined primary and 
secondary service area were to Carle, both during the 2010 fiscal year. 



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum 
 
To: IFA Board of Directors 
 
Date: March 8, 2011 
 
From: Jim Senica 
 
Re:   Request to IFA Board of Directors for approval of: release of manufacturing equipment currently 

held as collateral on the following subject loan:   
 
IFA Loan # B-LL-TX-6134 
Original Loan Amount:  $1,000,000.00 
Balance as of 12/31/10: $575,809.95 
Interest Rate: 4.35% 
Original Note:  6/14/07  

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Citizens First National Bank (the “Bank”) in Princeton and Wire Mesh Corporation (the “Borrower”) have 
requested IFA concurrence of approval to release manufacturing equipment which is currently held as collateral on 
the IFA Participation Loan referenced above.   The request is being made to accommodate additional working capital 
financing needed for the Company’s accelerated growth.  Wire Mesh Corporation is a Mexico-based manufacturer of 
welded wire fabric used for both commercial and residential markets in the production of concrete slabs.  The 
Company has created 100 jobs in Oglesby, Illinois.  
  
The Bank originated a $2,500,000 loan in June of 2006 in which IFA purchased a 40% participation in the amount of 
$1,000,000 to finance the acquisition of land and new manufacturing equipment and the construction of a new 
manufacturing building in Oglesby, Illinois.  The borrower contributed equity in the amount of $3,149,993 to 
complete the financing and has paid down the IFA/Bank loan from the original $2.5 million to approximately $1.43 
million.   
 
Since the inception of the loan, the Borrower has advised the Bank that the Company requires additional working 
capital on a company-wide basis including the Oglesby plant to accommodate additional growth and needs the 
equipment located in the Oglesby plant to pledge for the additional financing.  The Bank has already approved the 
Borrower’s request supported by the substantial reduction in the outstanding principal balance of the combined 
IFA/Bank participation loan from $2.5 million in 2006 to approximately $1.43 million now. 
 
When the IFA Board of Directors originally approved this loan at the June 13, 2006 Board meeting, supported by an 
original loan-to-value (“LTV”) advance rate of 66.7% LTV based on (i) project real estate with an (undiscounted) 
appraised value of $3,250,000 and (ii) the value of new equipment purchased at a cost of $1,000,000 (and 
discounted 50% to $500,000 for collateral analysis).  





  
 
 
 
 

ITEM NO. 8 
Ratification of Authorization of Counsel to Pursue Remedies under Default 

Provisions  
 

TO BE DISTRIBUTED SEPERATELY  

 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM NO. 9 
Resolution to Proceed with IT Investments 

 
TO BE DISTRIBUTED SEPERATELY  

 







 
 
 
 
 

ITEM NO. 12 
Authorize Executive Director to negotiate settlement regarding sale of Harmonic 

Vision, Inc.  
 

TO BE DISTRIBUTED SEPERATELY  
 

 


	TAB 0 - BDAG 03 08 11 v2
	COVER
	AGENDA

	TAB A - PLACEHOLDER
	TAB A - PLACEHOLDER
	Handouts Page One

	EthicsTraining

	TAB A01 - report for the board book Feb 11
	actual to budget general fund
	actual to actual general 
	IFA-BALS
	actual to budget consolidated
	actual to actual consolidated
	IFA-BALS consolidated

	TAB A02 - Audit Findings-Tracking w 2 tabs 2 pages total
	Summary FY09 Mat
	Summary FY09 Immaterial

	TAB A03 - Bonds Issued by Fiscal Year 022811
	TAB A04 - Schedule of Debt by Market Sector 022811pdf
	Fiscal Year 2011

	TAB B - Minutes of COW 02.08.11 v2
	TAB C - Minutes of Board Meeting 02 08 11 v2
	TAB 1 - Beginning Farmer Bond Summary 2011-03 FBR (v11)
	Memorandum

	TAB 2 - Methodist Board Summary 2011-03 PBR (v11)
	TAB 3 - Roseland Hospital FBR 2010-11 (v11)
	Inpatient Services
	Roseland Community Hospital provides a full range of inpatient services to meet the evolving needs of the community.  Inpatient services include, medical/surgical unit, level II nursery, obstetrics unit, telemetry unit detoxification services, pediatr...

	TAB 4 - Sarah Bush Lincoln Board Summary 2011-03 FBR (v10)
	TAB 5 - The Carle Foundation 2011-03 FBR (v10)
	TAB 6 - Amendment-Wire Mesh Corporation 2011-03 FINAL
	TAB 7 - PLACEHOLDER
	TAB 8 - PLACEHOLDER
	TAB 9 - PLACEHOLDER
	TAB 10
	TAB 11
	TAB 12



